God's Promises

Author: Pastor James Tien Translate: Anisa Chang Publisher: Truth Book Room 著者:田雅各牧師 出版:真理書室 https://terryyu.weebly.com/

Introduction

An important part of the Bible is God's promises. More than a thousand articles are selected from the Old and New Testaments for God's children to read, memorize, meditate, and ask the Holy Spirit to enlighten, reveal, and guide us so that we can know more about God and His will in us.

God's promises are an eternal treasure that many believers seek, receive, and apply without knowing it, and the loss of these spiritual blessings is incalculable. If you can examine it carefully, fully believe it, and seek fulfillment, the benefits are incomparable.

Reading the order of the promises listed in this book can help to understand the Bible's books and to consistently understand the central links of reasoning and revelation. You can also get help at any time to solve individual problems and meet various needs. Because God's Word is purified, it can be recited as verses, and the Scriptures can be used by the Holy Spirit as spiritual food, as a light for walking and as a weapon of battle, and as a sermon subject and Bible study.

God's promises, though many, are real in Christ (2 Corinthians 1:20). It can be applied to every Christian, just as God's promise to Abraham that we inherit by faith as Abraham's children (Romans 4:13, 16; Galatians 3:7, 29). But we can't just grasp individual verses in the promise without paying attention to the relevant aspects.

Additionally, because some promises are conditional, we should also seek to understand God's will, please Him, and achieve His purposes, not just for the benefit of yourself, to fulfill your our will and needs.

May God bless His Word, fulfill His promises, and reward all who seek Him (Hebrews 6:12; 11:6). Through this little book, people are drawn to God: to draw near to Him, to serve Him, and to give Him glory forever. Amen!

Table of Contents

God's Promises (Old Testament)	4
1. In the Pentateuch	4
2. In the History Books	14
3. In the Books of Poetry	
4. Major Prophets	
5. Minor Prophets	
God's Promises (New Testament)	56
1. In the Gospel Books	56
2. In the Church History	66
3. In Paul's Epistles	
4. In the Other Epistles	94
5. In the Book of Revelation	104

God's Promises (Old Testament)

1. In the Pentateuch

1. Govern the land (Genesis 1:28)

And God blessed them. And God said to them, "Be fruitful and multiply and fill the earth and subdue it, and have dominion over the fish of the sea and over the birds of the heavens and over every living thing that moves on the earth."

2. Walk with God (Genesis 5:24)

Enoch walked faithfully with God; then he was no more, because God took him away.

3. Favor with God (Genesis 6:8)

But Noah found favor in the eyes of the Lord.

```
4. Flourish (Genesis 9:7)
```

And you, be fruitful and multiply, increase greatly on the earth and multiply in it.

5. Rainbow (Genesis 9:13)

I have set my bow in the cloud, and it shall be a sign of the covenant between me and the earth.

6. God will bless (Genesis 12:1-2)

Now the Lord said to Abram, "Go from your country and your kindred and your father's house to the land that I will show you. And I will make of you a great nation, and I will bless you and make your name great, so that you will be a blessing."

7. Walk over all the land (Genesis 13:17)

Arise, walk through the length and the breadth of the land, for I will give it to you.

8. Do not be afraid (Genesis 15:1)

After these things the word of the Lord came to Abram in a vision: "Fear not, Abram, I am your shield; your reward shall be very great."

9. God is watching (Genesis 16:13)

So she called the name of the Lord who spoke to her, "You are a God of seeing," for she said, "Truly here I have seen him who looks after me."

10. Makes covenants (Genesis 17:1-2)

When Abram was ninety-nine years old the Lord appeared to Abram and said to him, "I am God Almighty; walk before me, and be blameless, that I may make my covenant between me and you, and may multiply you greatly."

11. Nothing is difficult for God (Genesis 18:14)

Is anything too hard for the Lord? At the appointed time I will return to you, about this time next year, and Sarah shall have a son."

12. Become a great power (Genesis 18:18)

Seeing that Abraham shall surely become a great and mighty nation, and all the nations of the earth shall be blessed in him?

13. God will be prepared (Genesis 22:14)

So Abraham called the name of that place, "The Lord will provide"; as it is said to this day, "On the mount of the Lord it shall be provided."

14. Great blessings will be given (Genesis 22:16-17)

He said, "By myself I have sworn, declares the Lord, because you have done this and have not withheld your son, your only son, I will surely bless you, and I will surely multiply your offspring as the stars of heaven and as the sand that is on the seashore. And your offspring shall possess the gate of his enemies,

15. All nations are blessed (Genesis 22:18)

and in your offspring shall all the nations of the earth be blessed, because you have obeyed my voice.

16. Good opportunity (Genesis 24:12)

And he said, "O Lord, God of my master Abraham, please grant me success today and show steadfast love to my master Abraham.

17. Road accessibility (Genesis 24:40)

But he said to me, "The Lord, before whom I have walked, will send his angel with you and prosper your way. You shall take a wife for my son from my clan and from my father's house."

18. With You (Genesis 26:2-3)

And the Lord appeared to him and said, "Do not go down to Egypt; dwell in the land of which I shall tell you. Sojourn in this land, and I will be with you and will bless you, for to you and to your offspring I will give all these lands, and I will establish the oath that I swore to Abraham your father.

19. I will bless you (Genesis 28:15)

Behold, I am with you and will keep you wherever you go, and will bring you back to this land. For I will not leave you until I have done what I have promised you.

20. Blessed wherever you go (Genesis 30:30)

For you had little before I came, and it has increased abundantly, and the Lord has blessed you wherever I turned. But now when shall I provide for my own household also?

21. Become two camps (Genesis 32:10)

I am not worthy of the least of all the deeds of steadfast love and all the faithfulness that you have shown to your servant, for with only my staff I crossed this Jordan, and now I have become two camps.

22. Named Israel (Genesis 32:28)

Then he said, "Your name shall no longer be called Jacob, but Israel, for you have striven with God and with men, and have prevailed."

23. Be fruitful (Genesis 35:11)

And God said to him, "I am God Almighty: be fruitful and multiply. A nation and a company of nations shall come from you, and kings shall come from your own body."

24. The stars bowing down (Genesis 37:9)

Then he dreamed another dream and told it to his brothers and said, "Behold, I have dreamed another dream. Behold, the sun, the moon, and eleven stars were bowing down to me."

25. Succeed (Genesis 39:23)

The keeper of the prison paid no attention to anything that was in Joseph's charge, because the Lord was with him. And whatever he did, the Lord made it succeed.

26. God sent me (Genesis 45:7-8)

And God sent me before you to preserve for you a remnant on earth, and to keep alive for you many survivors. So it was not you who sent me here, but God. He has made me a father to Pharaoh, and lord of all his house and ruler over all the land of Egypt.

27. God is my shepherd all my life (Genesis 48:15-16)

And he blessed Joseph and said, "The God before whom my fathers Abraham and Isaac walked, the God who has been my shepherd all my life long to this day, the angel who has redeemed me from all evil, bless the boys; and in them let my name be carried on, and the name of my fathers Abraham and Isaac; and let them grow into a multitude in the midst of the earth."

28. God will help (Genesis 49:25)

By the God of your father who will help you, by the Almighty who will bless you with blessings of heaven above, blessings of the deep that crouches beneath, blessings of the breasts and of the womb.

29. God's will is good (Genesis 50:20)

As for you, you meant evil against me, but God meant it for good, to bring it about that many people should be kept alive, as they are today.

30. Know the bitterness (Exodus 2:24-25)

And God heard their groaning, and God remembered his covenant with Abraham, with Isaac, and with Jacob. God saw the people of Israel—and God knew.

31. Deliver out of Egypt (Exodus 3:8)

And I have come down to deliver them out of the hand of the Egyptians and to bring them up out of that land to a good and broad land, a land flowing with milk and honey, to the place of the Canaanites, the Hittites, the Amorites, the Perizzites, the Hivites, and the Jebusites.

32. Give eloquence of speech (Exodus 4:12)

Now therefore go, and I will be with your mouth and teach you what you shall speak.

33. Free from burden (Exodus 6:6)

Say therefore to the people of Israel, "I am the Lord, and I will bring you out from under the burdens of the Egyptians, and I will deliver you from slavery to them, and I will redeem you with an outstretched arm and with great acts of judgment."

34. Serve God (Exodus 8:1)

Then the Lord said to Moses, "Go in to Pharaoh and say to him, 'Thus says the Lord, "Let my people go, that they may serve me.""

35. Passover blood (Exodus 12:13)

The blood shall be a sign for you, on the houses where you are. And when I see the blood, I will pass over you, and no plague will befall you to destroy you, when I strike the land of Egypt.

36. That very day (Exodus 12:51)

And on that very day the Lord brought the people of Israel out of the land of Egypt by their hosts.

37. Cloud pillar leads the way (Exodus 13:21)

And the Lord went before them by day in a pillar of cloud to lead them along the way, and by night in a pillar of fire to give them light, that they might travel by day and by night.

38. See the salvation from God (Exodus 14:13)

And Moses said to the people, "Fear not, stand firm, and see the salvation of the Lord, which he will work for you today. For the Egyptians whom you see today, you shall never see again."

39. God fights for us (Exodus 14:14)

The Lord will fight for you, and you have only to be silent.

40. Dry land in the sea (Exodus 14:22)

And the people of Israel went into the midst of the sea on dry ground, the waters being a wall to them on their right hand and on their left.

41. Doing wonders (Exodus 15:11)

Who is like you, O Lord, among the gods? Who is like you, majestic in holiness, awesome in glorious deeds, doing wonders?

42. Water becomes sweet (Exodus 15:25)

And he cried to the Lord, and the Lord showed him a log, and he threw it into the water, and the water became sweet. There the Lord made for them a statute and a rule, and there he tested them.

43. God the healer (Exodus 15:26)

He said, "If you will diligently listen to the voice of the Lord your God, and do that which is right in his eyes, and give ear to his commandments and keep all his statutes, I will put none of the diseases on you that I put on the Egyptians, for I am the Lord, your healer."

44. Gather little (Exodus 16:18)

But when they measured it with an omer, whoever gathered much had nothing left over, and whoever gathered little had no lack. Each of them gathered as much as he could eat.

45. Water coming from the rock (Exodus 17:6)

"Behold, I will stand before you there on the rock at Horeb, and you shall strike the rock, and water shall come out of it, and the people will drink." And Moses did so, in the sight of the elders of Israel.

46. Raise your hand to win (Exodus 17:11)

Whenever Moses held up his hand, Israel prevailed, and whenever he lowered his hand, Amalek prevailed.

47. On eagles' wings (Exodus 19:4)

You yourselves have seen what I did to the Egyptians, and how I bore you on eagles' wings and brought you to myself.

48. Be a people of God (Exodus 19:5-6)

Now therefore, if you will indeed obey my voice and keep my covenant, you shall be my treasured possession among all peoples, for all the earth is mine; and you shall be to me a kingdom of priests and a holy nation.

49. Steadfast love (Exodus 20:6)

But showing steadfast love to thousands of those who love me and keep my commandments.

50. Not sin (Exodus 20:20)

Moses said to the people, "Do not fear, for God has come to test you, that the fear of him may be before you, that you may not sin."

51. Send an angel before you (Exodus 23:20)

Behold, I send an angel before you to guard you on the way and to bring you to the place that I have prepared.

52. Obey his voice (Exodus 23:22)

But if you carefully obey his voice and do all that I say, then I will be an enemy to your enemies and an adversary to your adversaries.

53. Remove sickness (Exodus 23:25)

Serve the Lord your God, who will bless you with bread and your water, and will remove sickness from among you.

54. Dwell in your midst (Exodus 25:8)

And let them make me a sanctuary, that I may dwell in their midst.

55. Meet above the mercy seat (Exodus 25:22)

There I will meet with you, and from above the mercy seat, from between the two cherubim that are on the ark of the testimony, I will speak with you about all that I will give you in commandment for the people of Israel.

56. Tent of meeting (Exodus 29:42)

It shall be a regular burnt offering throughout your generations at the entrance of the tent of meeting before the Lord, where I will meet with you, to speak to you there.

57. Filled with the Spirit (Exodus 31:3)

And I have filled him with the Spirit of God, with ability and intelligence, with knowledge and all craftsmanship.

58. Speak face to face (Exodus 33:11)

Thus the Lord used to speak to Moses face to face, as a man speaks to his friend. When Moses turned again into the camp, his assistant Joshua the son of Nun, a young man, would not depart from the tent.

59. God's presence (Exodus 33:14)

And he said, "My presence will go with you, and I will give you rest."

60. Face shone (Exodus 34:29)

When Moses came down from Mount Sinai, with the two tablets of the testimony in his hand as he came down from the mountain, Moses did not know that the skin of his face shone because he had been talking with God.

61. Full of glory (Exodus 40:34)

Then the cloud covered the tent of meeting, and the glory of the Lord filled the tabernacle.

62. He will be forgiven (Leviticus 4:26, 35)

As for his sins, the priests will atone for him, and he will be forgiven.

63. Consecration (Leviticus 8:10, 12)

Then Moses took the anointing oil and anointed the tabernacle and all that was in it, and consecrated them. And he poured some of the anointing oil on Aaron's head and anointed him to consecrate him.

64. Atonement is possible (Leviticus 17:11)

For the life of the flesh is in the blood, and I have given it for you on the altar to make atonement for your souls, for it is the blood that makes atonement by the life.

65. Keep God's statutes (Leviticus 18:5)

You shall therefore keep my statutes and my rules; if a person does them, he shall live by them: I am the Lord.

66. God's people (Leviticus 20:26)

You shall be holy to me, for I the Lord am holy and have separated you from the peoples, that you should be mine.

67. Pursue the enemy (Leviticus 26:8)

Five of you shall chase a hundred, and a hundred of you shall chase ten thousand, and your enemies shall fall before you by the sword.

68. Walk among you (Leviticus 26:12)

And I will walk among you and will be your God, and you shall be my people.

69. Holy to God (Leviticus 27:28)

But no devoted thing that a man devotes to the Lord, of anything that he has, whether man or beast, or of his inherited field, shall be sold or redeemed; every devoted thing is most holy to the Lord.

70. The firstborn consecrated to God (Numbers 3:13)

For all the firstborn are mine. On the day that I struck down all the firstborn in the land of Egypt, I consecrated for my own all the firstborn in Israel, both of man and of beast. They shall be mine: I am the Lord.

71. Separate himself to God (Numbers 6:2)

Speak to the people of Israel and say to them, When either a man or a woman makes a special vow, the vow of a Nazirite, to separate himself to the Lord,

72. May God bless you (Numbers 6:24-26)

The Lord bless you and keep you; the Lord make his face to shine upon you and be gracious to you; the Lord lift up his countenance upon you and give you peace.

73. Follow the cloud (Numbers 9:17)

And whenever the cloud lifted from over the tent, after that the people of Israel set out, and in the place where the cloud settled down, there the people of Israel camped.

74. Go with the ark of the covenant (Numbers 10:33)

So they set out from the mount of the Lord three days' journey. And the ark of the covenant of the Lord went before them three days' journey, to seek out a resting place for them.

75. Arise and drive out the enemy (Numbers 10:35)

And whenever the ark set out, Moses said, "Arise, O Lord, and let your enemies be scattered, and let those who hate you flee before you."

76. Speak mouth to mouth (Numbers 12:8)

With him I speak mouth to mouth, clearly, and not in riddles, and he beholds the form of the Lord. Why then were you not afraid to speak against my servant Moses?

77. Bring into the land (Numbers 14:24)

But my servant Caleb, because he has a different spirit and has followed me fully, I will bring into the land into which he went, and his descendants shall possess it.

78. God is our inheritance (Numbers 18:20)

And the Lord said to Aaron, "You shall have no inheritance in their land, neither shall you have any portion among them. I am your portion and your inheritance among the people of Israel."

79. Tithes given to Levites (Numbers 18:21)

To the Levites I have given every tithe in Israel for an inheritance, in return for their service that they do, their service in the tent of meeting.

80. Shall live (Numbers 21:8)

And the Lord said to Moses, "Make a fiery serpent and set it on a pole, and everyone who is bitten, when he sees it, shall live."

81. Are blessed (Numbers 22:12)

God said to Balaam, "You shall not go with them. You shall not curse the people, for they are blessed."

82. God is with them (Numbers 23:21)

He has not beheld misfortune in Jacob, nor has he seen trouble in Israel. The Lord their God is with them, and the shout of a king is among them.

83. Lovely tents (Numbers 24:5)

How lovely are your tents, O Jacob, your encampments, O Israel!

84. Scepter from Israel (Numbers 24:17)

I see him, but not now; I behold him, but not near: a star shall come out of Jacob, and a scepter shall rise out of Israel; it shall crush the forehead of Moab and break down all the sons of Sheth.

85. Covenant of peace (Numbers 25:11-12)

Phinehas the son of Eleazar, son of Aaron the priest, has turned back my wrath from the people of Israel, in that he was jealous with my jealousy among them, so that I did not consume the people of Israel in my jealousy. Therefore say, "Behold, I give to him my covenant of peace,"

86. The congregation obeyed (Numbers 27:20)

You shall invest him with some of your authority, that all the congregation of the people of Israel may obey.

87. Not short of one man (Numbers 31:49)

Your servants have counted the men of war who are under our command, and there is not a man missing from us.

88. The city of escape was established (Numbers 35:11)

Then you shall select cities to be cities of refuge for you, that the manslayer who kills any person without intent may flee there.

89. God carried you (Deuteronomy 1:31)

And in the wilderness, where you have seen how the Lord your God carried you, as a man carries his son, all the way that you went until you came to this place.

90. Nothing is missing (Deuteronomy 2:7)

For the Lord your God has blessed you in all the work of your hands. He knows your going through this great wilderness. These forty years the Lord your God has been with you. You have lacked nothing.

91. Don't be afraid (Deuteronomy 3:22)

You shall not fear them, for it is the Lord your God who fights for you.

92. You will find Him (Deuteronomy 4:29)

But from there you will seek the Lord your God and you will find him, if you search after him with all your heart and with all your soul.

93. Obeying His commandments is blessed (Deuteronomy 4:40; 5:29; 6:2-3; 7:12-15; 10:12-13)

Therefore you shall keep his statutes and his commandments, which I command you today, that it may go well with you and with your children after you, and that you may prolong your days in the land that the Lord your God is giving you for all time.

94. Clothes did not wear out (Deuteronomy 8:4)

Your clothing did not wear out on you and your foot did not swell these forty years.

95. God watches (Deuteronomy 11:11-12)

But the land that you are going over to possess is a land of hills and valleys, which drinks water by the rain from heaven, a land that the Lord your God cares for. The eyes of the Lord your God are always upon it, from the beginning of the year to the end of the year.

96. There are no poor people (Deuteronomy 15:4-5)

But there will be no poor among you; for the Lord will bless you in the land that the Lord your God is giving you for an inheritance to possess — if only you will strictly obey the voice of the Lord your God, being careful to do all this commandment that I command you today.

97. Raise up the prophets (Deuteronomy 18:15)

The Lord your God will raise up for you a prophet like me from among you, from your brothers—it is to him you shall listen.

98. Do not fear the enemy (Deuteronomy 20:1)

When you go out to war against your enemies, and see horses and chariots and an army larger than your own, you shall not be afraid of them, for the Lord your God is with you, who brought you up out of the land of Egypt.

99. Above all nations (Deuteronomy 26:19; 8:1)

And that he will set you in praise and in fame and in honor high above all nations that he has made, and that you shall be a people holy to the Lord your God, as he promised."

100. Blessed (Deuteronomy 28:2-6)

And all these blessings shall come upon you and overtake you, if you obey the voice of the Lord your God. Blessed shall you be in the city, and blessed shall you be in the field. Blessed shall be the fruit of your womb and the fruit of your ground and the fruit of your cattle, the increase of your herds and the young of your flock. Blessed shall be your basket and your kneading bowl. Blessed shall you be when you come in, and blessed shall you be when you go out.

101. Establish you (Deuteronomy 29:13)

That he may establish you today as his people, and that he may be your God, as he promised you, and as he swore to your fathers, to Abraham, to Isaac, and to Jacob.

102. Gather you again (Deuteronomy 30:3)

Then the Lord your God will restore your fortunes and have mercy on you, and he will gather you again from all the peoples where the Lord your God has scattered you.

103. Live and multiply (Deuteronomy 30:16, 19)

If you obey the commandments of the Lord your God that I command you today, by loving the Lord your God, by walking in his ways, and by keeping his commandments and his statutes and his rules, then you shall live and multiply, and the Lord your God will bless you in the land that you are entering to take possession of it.

104. God is with you (Deuteronomy 31:6, 8)

Be strong and courageous. Do not fear or be in dread of them, for it is the Lord your God who goes with you. He will not leave you or forsake you.

105. Apple of his eye (Deuteronomy 32:10)

He found him in a desert land, and in the howling waste of the wilderness; he encircled him, he cared for him, he kept him as the apple of his eye.

106. Safety (Deuteronomy 33:12)

Of Benjamin he said, "The beloved of the Lord dwells in safety. The High God surrounds him all day long, and dwells between his shoulders."

107. Blessed (Deuteronomy 33:13-16)

And of Joseph he said, "Blessed by the Lord be his land, with the choicest gifts of heaven above, and of the deep that crouches beneath, with the choicest fruits of the sun and the rich yield of the months, with the finest produce of the ancient mountains and the abundance of the everlasting hills, with the best gifts of the earth and its fullness and the favor of him who dwells in the bush. May these rest on the head of Joseph, on the pate of him who is prince among his brothers."

108. Strength (Deuteronomy 33:25)

Your bars shall be iron and bronze, and as your days, so shall your strength be.

109. God is our dwelling place (Deuteronomy 33:27)

The eternal God is your dwelling place, and underneath are the everlasting arms. And he thrust out the enemy before you and said, 'Destroy.'

110. Unabated (Deuteronomy 34:7)

Moses was 120 years old when he died. His eye was undimmed, and his vigor unabated.

2. In the History Books

111. Prosperous way (Joshua 1:8)

This Book of the Law shall not depart from your mouth, but you shall meditate on it day and night, so that you may be careful to do according to all that is written in it. For then you will make your way prosperous, and then you will have good success.

112. Commander of the army (Joshua 5:14)

And he said, "No; but I am the commander of the army of the Lord. Now I have come." And Joshua fell on his face to the earth and worshiped and said to him, "What does my lord say to his servant?"

113. The wall will fall (Joshua 6:5)

And when they make a long blast with the ram's horn, when you hear the sound of the trumpet, then all the people shall shout with a great shout, and the wall of the city will fall down flat, and the people shall go up, everyone straight before him.

114. The Lord fought for Israel (Joshua 10:12-14)

At that time Joshua spoke to the Lord in the day when the Lord gave the Amorites over to the sons of Israel, and he said in the sight of Israel, "Sun, stand still at Gibeon, and moon, in the Valley of Aijalon." And the sun stood still, and the moon stopped, until the nation took vengeance on their enemies. The sun stopped in the midst of heaven and did not hurry to set for about a whole day. There has been no day like it before or since, when the Lord heeded the voice of a man, for the Lord fought for Israel.

115. Inheritance (Joshua 13:6)

All the inhabitants of the hill country from Lebanon to Misrephoth-maim, even all the Sidonians. I myself will drive them out from before the people of Israel. Only allot the land to Israel for an inheritance, as I have commanded you.

116. Still strong (Joshua 14:10-11)

And now, behold, the Lord has kept me alive, just as he said, these forty-five years since the time that the Lord spoke this word to Moses, while Israel walked in the wilderness. And now, behold, I am this day eighty-five years old. I am still as strong today as I was in the day that Moses sent me; my strength now is as my strength was then, for war and for going and coming.

117. Upper and Lower Springs (Joshua 15:19)

She said to him, "Give me a blessing. Since you have given me the land of the Negeb, give me also springs of water." And he gave her the upper springs and the lower springs.

118. All fulfilled (Joshua 21:45)

Not one word of all the good promises that the Lord had made to the house of Israel had failed; all came to pass.

119. Raise up judges (Judges 2:18)

Whenever the Lord raised up judges for them, the Lord was with the judge, and he saved them from the hand of their enemies all the days of the judge. For the Lord was moved to pity by their groaning because of those who afflicted and oppressed them.

120. Cry for salvation (Judges 3:15)

Then the people of Israel cried out to the Lord, and the Lord raised up for them a deliverer, Ehud, the son of Gera, the Benjaminite, a left-handed man. The people of Israel sent tribute by him to Eglon the king of Moab.

121. Like the sun (Judges 5:31)

So may all your enemies perish, O Lord! But your friends be like the sun as he rises in his might."

122. Send prophets (Judges 6:7-8)

When the people of Israel cried out to the Lord on account of the Midianites, the Lord sent a prophet to the people of Israel.

123. In this might (Judges 6:14)

And the Lord turned to him and said, "Go in this might of yours and save Israel from the hand of Midian; do not I send you?"

124. Revived (Judges 15:19)

And God split open the hollow place that is at Lehi, and water came out from it. And when he drank, his spirit returned, and he revived. Therefore the name of it was called En-hakkore; it is at Lehi to this day.

125. Full reward (Ruth 2:12)

The Lord repay you for what you have done, and a full reward be given you by the Lord, the God of Israel, under whose wings you have come to take refuge!

126. Greater than the first (Ruth 3:10)

May you be blessed by the Lord, my daughter. You have made this last kindness greater than the first in that you have not gone after young men, whether poor or rich.

127. All in God (1 Samuel 2:6-8)

The Lord kills and brings to life; he brings down to Sheol and raises up. The Lord makes poor and makes rich; he brings low and he exalts. He raises up the poor from the dust; he lifts the needy from the ash heap to make them sit with princes and inherit a seat of honor. For the pillars of the earth are the Lord's, and on them he has set the world.

128. God honors those who honor Him (1 Samuel 2:30)

Therefore the Lord, the God of Israel, declares: 'I promised that your house and the house of your father should go in and out before me forever,' but now the Lord declares: 'Far be it from me, for those who honor me I will honor, and those who despise me shall be lightly esteemed.'

129. Not a word fell (1 Samuel 3:19)

And Samuel grew, and the Lord was with him and let none of his words fall to the ground.

130. God helps us (1 Samuel 7:12)

Then Samuel took a stone and set it up between Mizpah and Shen and called its name Ebenezer; for he said, "Till now the Lord has helped us."

131. God brings victory (1 Samuel 14:6)

Jonathan said to the young man who carried his armor, "Come, let us go over to the garrison of these uncircumcised. It may be that the Lord will work for us, for nothing can hinder the Lord from saving by many or by few."

132. The battle is the Lord's (1 Samuel 17:47)

And that all this assembly may know that the Lord saves not with sword and spear. For the battle is the Lord's, and he will give you into our hand.

133. God testifies (1 Samuel 20:23)

And as for the matter of which you and I have spoken, behold, the Lord is between you and me forever.

```
134. God judges (1 Samuel 24:12)
```

May the Lord judge between me and you, may the Lord avenge me against you, but my hand shall not be against you.

135. God protects (1 Samuel 25:29)

If men rise up to pursue you and to seek your life, the life of my lord shall be bound in the bundle of the living in the care of the Lord your God. And the lives of your enemies he shall sling out as from the hollow of a sling.

136. God rewards (1 Samuel 26:23)

The Lord rewards every man for his righteousness and his faithfulness, for the Lord gave you into my hand today, and I would not put out my hand against the Lord's anointed.

137. Strengthened by God (1 Samuel 30:6)

And David was greatly distressed, for the people spoke of stoning him, because all the people were bitter in soul, each for his sons and daughters. But David strengthened himself in the Lord his God.

138. Grow stronger (2 Samuel 3:1)

There was a long war between the house of Saul and the house of David. And David grew stronger and stronger, while the house of Saul became weaker and weaker.

139. Love will not depart (2 Samuel 7:14-15)

I will be to him a father, and he shall be to me a son. When he commits iniquity, I will discipline him with the rod of men, with the stripes of the sons of men, but my steadfast love will not depart from him, as I took it from Saul, whom I put away from before you.

140. Promised blessings (2 Samuel 7:28)

And now, O Lord God, you are God, and your words are true, and you have promised this good thing to your servant.

141. God gave victory (2 Samuel 8:14)

Then he put garrisons in Edom; throughout all Edom he put garrisons, and all the Edomites became David's servants. And the Lord gave victory to David wherever he went.

142. Do according to God's will (2 Samuel 10:12)

Be of good courage, and let us be courageous for our people, and for the cities of our God, and may the Lord do what seems good to him.

143. Treat him as he is (2 Samuel 22:26-27)

With the merciful you show yourself merciful; with the blameless man you show yourself blameless; with the purified you deal purely, and with the crooked you make yourself seem tortuous.

144. Training for battle (2 Samuel 22:35)

He trains my hands for war, so that my arms can bend a bow of bronze.

145. Everlasting covenent (2 Samuel 23:5)

For does not my house stand so with God? For he has made with me an everlasting covenant, ordered in all things and secure. For will he not cause to prosper all my help and my desire?

146. God is merciful (2 Samuel 24:14)

Then David said to Gad, "I am in great distress. Let us fall into the hand of the Lord, for his mercy is great; but let me not fall into the hand of man."

147. Prosper in all (1 Kings 2:3)

Keep the charge of the Lord your God, walking in his ways and keeping his statutes, his commandments, his rules, and his testimonies, as it is written in the Law of Moses, that you may prosper in all that you do and wherever you turn.

148. Wisdom (1 Kings 3:12-13)

Behold, I now do according to your word. Behold, I give you a wise and discerning mind, so that none like you has been before you and none like you shall arise after you. I give you also what you have not asked, both riches and honor, so that no other king shall compare with you, all your days.

149. God will not forsake His people (1 Kings 6:13)

And I will dwell among the children of Israel and will not forsake my people Israel.

150. Fulfilled His promise (1 Kings 8:15)

Blessed be the Lord, the God of Israel, who with his hand has fulfilled what he promised with his mouth to David my father.

151. God hears prayers (1 Kings 8:52)

Let your eyes be open to the plea of your servant and to the plea of your people Israel, giving ear to them whenever they call to you.

152. God gives rest (1 Kings 8:56)

Blessed be the Lord who has given rest to his people Israel, according to all that he promised. Not one word has failed of all his good promise, which he spoke by Moses his servant.

153. The Lord is God (1 Kings 8:60)

That all the peoples of the earth may know that the Lord is God; there is no other.

154. Consecrated (1 Kings 9:3)

And the Lord said to him, "I have heard your prayer and your plea, which you have made before me. I have consecrated this house that you have built, by putting my name there forever. My eyes and my heart will be there for all time."

155. Not empty (1 Kings 17:14)

For thus says the Lord, the God of Israel, "The jar of flour shall not be spent, and the jug of oil shall not be empty, until the day that the Lord sends rain upon the earth."

156. Remnant (1 Kings 19:18)

Yet I will leave seven thousand in Israel, all the knees that have not bowed to Baal, and every mouth that has not kissed him.

157. Into your hands (1 Kings 20:28)

And a man of God came near and said to the king of Israel, "Thus says the Lord, 'Because the Syrians have said, "The Lord is a god of the hills but he is not a god of the valleys," therefore I will give all this great multitude into your hand, and you shall know that I am the Lord."

158. Double portion (2 Kings 2:9-10)

Elijah said to Elisha, "Ask what I shall do for you, before I am taken from you." And Elisha said, "Please let there be a double portion of your spirit on me." And he said, "You have asked a hard thing; yet, if you see me as I am being taken from you, it shall be so for you, but if you do not see me, it shall not be so."

159. Filled with water (2 Kings 3:17)

For thus says the Lord, "You shall not see wind or rain, but that streambed shall be filled with water, so that you shall drink, you, your livestock, and your animals."

160. More of us (2 Kings 6:16)

He said, "Do not be afraid, for those who are with us are more than those who are with them."

161. Arrow of victory (2 Kings 13:17)

And he said, "The Lord's arrow of victory, the arrow of victory over Syria! For you shall fight the Syrians in Aphek until you have made an end of them."

162. Prospered (2 Kings 18:6-7)

For he held fast to the Lord. He did not depart from following him, but kept the commandments that the Lord commanded Moses. And the Lord was with him; wherever he went out, he prospered. He rebelled against the king of Assyria and would not serve him.

163. Bear fruit (2 Kings 19:30)

And the surviving remnant of the house of Judah shall again take root downward and bear fruit upward.

164. Hears prayers (2 Kings 20:5)

Thus says the Lord, the God of David your father: I have heard your prayer; I have seen your tears. Behold, I will heal you. On the third day you shall go up to the house of the Lord.

165. Promised you (2 Kings 22:19)

Because your heart was penitent, and you humbled yourself before the Lord, when you heard how I spoke against this place and against its inhabitants, that they should become a desolation and a curse, and you have torn your clothes and wept before me, I also have heard you, declares the Lord.

166. Pray for God's blessing (1 Chronicles 4:10)

Jabez called upon the God of Israel, saying, "Oh that you would bless me and enlarge my border, and that your hand might be with me, and that you would keep me from harm so that it might not bring me pain!" And God granted what he asked.

167. Blessed by God (1 Chronicles 13:14)

And the ark of God remained with the household of Obed-edom in his house three months. And the Lord blessed the household of Obed-edom and all that he had.

168. No harm (1 Chronicles 16:21-22)

He allowed no one to oppress them; he rebuked kings on their account, saying, "Touch not my anointed ones, do my prophets no harm!"

169. People of God (1 Chronicles 17:22)

And you made your people Israel to be your people forever, and you, O Lord, became their God.

170. Praise for victory over the enemy (2 Chronicles 20:20-22)

Jehoshaphat stood and said, "Hear me, Judah and inhabitants of Jerusalem! Believe in the Lord your God, and you will be established; believe his prophets, and you will succeed." And when he had taken counsel with the people, he appointed those who were to sing to the Lord and praise him in holy attire, as they went before the army, and say, "Give thanks to the Lord, for his steadfast love endures forever." And when they began to sing and praise, the Lord set an ambush against the men of Ammon, Moab, and Mount Seir, who had come against Judah, so that they were routed.

171. Sought the Lord (2 Chronicles 26:5)

He set himself to seek God in the days of Zechariah, who instructed him in the fear of God, and as long as he sought the Lord, God made him prosper.

172. Became mighty (2 Chronicles 27:6)

So Jotham became mighty, because he ordered his ways before the Lord his God.

173. Prospered (2 Chronicles 31:20-21)

Thus Hezekiah did throughout all Judah, and he did what was good and right and faithful before the Lord his God. And every work that he undertook in the service of the house of God and in accordance with the law and the commandments, seeking his God, he did with all his heart, and prospered.

174. Grant what is asked for (2 Chronicles 33:12-13)

And when he was in distress, he entreated the favor of the Lord his God and humbled himself greatly before the God of his fathers. He prayed to him, and God was moved by his entreaty and heard his plea and brought him again to Jerusalem into his kingdom. Then Manasseh knew that the Lord was God.

175. Hand of God with me (Ezra 7:9, 28; 9:8, 18, 22, 31)

God extended to me his steadfast love before the king and his counselors, and before all the king's mighty officers. I took courage, for the hand of the Lord my God was on me, and I gathered leading men from Israel to go up with me.

176. Help from God (Nehemiah 6:16)

And when all our enemies heard of it, all the nations around us were afraid and fell greatly in their own esteem, for they perceived that this work had been accomplished with the help of our God.

177. Rejoice in God (Nehemiah 8:10)

Then he said to them, "Go your way. Eat the fat and drink sweet wine and send portions to anyone who has nothing ready, for this day is holy to our Lord. And do not be grieved, for the joy of the Lord is your strength."

178. Made a covenant (Nehemiah 9:8)

You found his heart faithful before you, and made with him the covenant to give to his offspring the land of the Canaanite, the Hittite, the Amorite, the Perizzite, the Jebusite, and the Girgashite. And you have kept your promise, for you are righteous.

179. Found favor (Esther 2:15)

When the turn came for Esther the daughter of Abihail the uncle of Mordecai, who had taken her as his own daughter, to go in to the king, she asked for nothing except what Hegai the king's eunuch, who had charge of the women, advised. Now Esther was winning favor in the eyes of all who saw her.

180. Deliverance will rise (Esther 4:14)

For if you keep silent at this time, relief and deliverance will rise for the Jews from another place, but you and your father's house will perish. And who knows whether you have not come to the kingdom for such a time as this?

181. Turn sorrow into joy (Esther 9:22)

As the days on which the Jews got relief from their enemies, and as the month that had been turned for them from sorrow into gladness and from mourning into a holiday; that they should make them days of feasting and gladness, days for sending gifts of food to one another and gifts to the poor.

3. In the Books of Poetry

182. Blessed is the reproved (Job 5:17-19)

Behold, blessed is the one whom God reproves; therefore despise not the discipline of the Almighty. For he wounds, but he binds up; he shatters, but his hands heal. He will deliver you from six troubles; in seven no evil shall touch you.

183. He will not reject (Job 8:20)

Behold, God will not reject a blameless man, nor take the hand of evildoers.

184. Marvelous things (Job 9:10)

God does great things beyond searching out, and marvelous things beyond number.

185. Not fear (Job 11:13-15)

If you prepare your heart, you will stretch out your hands toward him. If iniquity is in your hand, put it far away, and let not injustice dwell in your tents. Surely then you will lift up your face without blemish; you will be secure and will not fear.

186. Witness in heaven (Job 16:19)

Even now, behold, my witness is in heaven, and he who testifies for me is on high.

187. See God (Job 19:25-26)

For I know that my Redeemer lives, and at the last he will stand upon the earth. And after my skin has been thus destroyed, yet in my flesh I shall see God.

188. God is your treasure (Job 22:22-27)

Receive instruction from his mouth, and lay up his words in your heart. If you return to the Almighty you will be built up; if you remove injustice far from your tents, if you lay gold in the dust, and gold of Ophir among the stones of the torrent-bed, then the Almighty will be your

gold and your precious silver. For then you will delight yourself in the Almighty and lift up your face to God. You will make your prayer to him, and he will hear you, and you will pay your vows.

189. Like gold (Job 23:10)

But he knows the way that I take; when he has tried me, I shall come out as gold.

190. Fear of the Lord is wisdom (Job 28:28)

And he said to man, "Behold, the fear of the Lord, that is wisdom, and to turn away from evil is understanding."

191. Opens their ear (Job 36:15)

He delivers the afflicted by their affliction and opens their ear by adversity.

192. Everything belongs to God (Job 41:11)

Who has first given to me, that I should repay him? Whatever is under the whole heaven is mine.

193. See God with your own eyes (Job 42:5-6)

I had heard of you by the hearing of the ear, but now my eye sees you; therefore I despise myself, and repent in dust and ashes.

194. Restored fortunes (Job 42:10)

And the Lord restored the fortunes of Job, when he had prayed for his friends. And the Lord gave Job twice as much as he had before.

195. Prospers (Psalm 1:1-3)

Blessed is the man who walks not in the counsel of the wicked, nor stands in the way of sinners, nor sits in the seat of scoffers; but his delight is in the law of the Lord, and on his law he meditates day and night. He is like a tree planted by streams of water that yields its fruit in its season, and its leaf does not wither. In all that he does, he prospers.

196. Raises your head (Psalm 3:3)

But you, O Lord, are a shield about me, my glory, and the lifter of my head.

197. God sustains (Psalm 3:5)

I lay down and slept; I woke again, for the Lord sustained me.

198. God hears (Psalm 4:3)

But know that the Lord has set apart the godly for himself; the Lord hears when I call to him.

199. Dwell in safety(Psalm 4:8)

In peace I will both lie down and sleep; for you alone, O Lord, make me dwell in safety.

200. Rejoice in God (Psalm 5:11)

But let all who take refuge in you rejoice; let them ever sing for joy, and spread your protection over them, that those who love your name may exult in you.

201. Bless the righteous (Psalm 5:12)

For you bless the righteous, O Lord; you cover him with favor as with a shield.

202. God listens to prayer (Psalm 6:9)

The Lord has heard my plea; the Lord accepts my prayer.

203. God is my shield(Psalm 7:10)

My shield is with God, who saves the upright in heart.

204. God cares for us (Psalm 8:4)

What is man that you are mindful of him, and the son of man that you care for him?

205. God does not forsake (Psalm 9:10)

And those who know your name put their trust in you, for you, O Lord, have not forsaken those who seek you.

206. Helper of the fatherless (Psalm 10:14)

But you do see, for you note mischief and vexation, that you may take it into your hands; to you the helpless commits himself; you have been the helper of the fatherless.

207. Strengthen their heart (Psalm 10:17)

O Lord, you hear the desire of the afflicted; you will strengthen their heart; you will incline your ear.

208. Behold His face (Psalm 11:7)

For the Lord is righteous; he loves righteous deeds; the upright shall behold his face.

209. The Words of God (Psalm 12:6)

The words of the Lord are pure words, like silver refined in a furnace on the ground, purified seven times.

210. Chosen portion (Psalm 16:5)

The Lord is my chosen portion and my cup; you hold my lot.

211. Not be shaken (Psalm 16:8)

I have set the Lord always before me; because he is at my right hand, I shall not be shaken.

212. Fullness of joy (Psalm 16:11)

You make known to me the path of life; in your presence there is fullness of joy; at your right hand are pleasures forevermore.

213. Under the shadow of God's wings (Psalm 17:8)

Keep me as the apple of your eye; hide me in the shadow of your wings,

214. Behold your face in righteousness (Psalm 17:15)

As for me, I shall behold your face in righteousness; when I awake, I shall be satisfied with your likeness.

215. God is my strength (Psalm 18:1)

I love you, O Lord, my strength.

216. God is my rock (Psalm 18:2, 62:6)

The Lord is my rock and my fortress and my deliverer, my God, my rock, in whom I take refuge, my shield, and the horn of my salvation, my stronghold.

217. He delights in me (Psalm 18:19)

He brought me out into a broad place; he rescued me, because he delighted in me.

218. The Law is perfect (Psalm 19:7-9)

The law of the Lord is perfect, reviving the soul; the testimony of the Lord is sure, making wise the simple; the precepts of the Lord are right, rejoicing the heart; the commandment of the Lord is pure, enlightening the eyes; the fear of the Lord is clean, enduring forever; the rules of the Lord are true, and righteous altogether.

219. Grant you your heart's desire (Psalm 20:4)

May he grant you your heart's desire and fulfill all your plans!

220. Trust in the name of the Lord (Psalm 20:7)

Some trust in chariots and some in horses, but we trust in the name of the Lord our God.

221. Give your heart's desire (Psalm 21:2)

You have given him his heart's desire and have not withheld the request of his lips.

222. Enthroned on praises (Psalm 22:3)

Yet you are holy, enthroned on the praises of Israel.

223. The heart lives forever (Psalm 22:26)

The afflicted shall eat and be satisfied; those who seek him shall praise the Lord! May your hearts live forever!

224. God is my shepherd (Psalm 23:1-2)

The Lord is my shepherd; I shall not want. He makes me lie down in green pastures. He leads me beside still waters.

225. Do not fear harm (Psalm 23:4)

Even though I walk through the valley of the shadow of death, I will fear no evil, for you are with me; your rod and your staff, they comfort me.

226. The cup of blessing overflows (Psalm 23:5)

You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies; you anoint my head with oil; my cup overflows.

227. Do not be ashamed (Psalm 25:3)

Indeed, none who wait for you shall be put to shame; they shall be ashamed who are wantonly treacherous.

228. Righteousness from God (Psalm 24:5-6)

He will receive blessing from the Lord and righteousness from the God of his salvation. Such is the generation of those who seek him, who seek the face of the God of Jacob.

229. God instructs sinners (Psalm 25:8)

Good and upright is the Lord; therefore he instructs sinners in the way.

230. The dwelling of glory (Psalm 26:8)

O Lord, I love the habitation of your house and the place where your glory dwells.

231. God is light (Psalm 27:1)

The Lord is my light and my salvation; whom shall I fear? The Lord is the stronghold of my life; of whom shall I be afraid?

232. Admire the beauty of the Lord (Psalm 27:4)

One thing have I asked of the Lord, that will I seek after: that I may dwell in the house of the Lord all the days of my life, to gaze upon the beauty of the Lord and to inquire in his temple.

233. Our shelter (Psalm 27:5)

For he will hide me in his shelter in the day of trouble; he will conceal me under the cover of his tent; he will lift me high upon a rock.

234. The Lord will take me in (Psalm 27:10)

For my father and my mother have forsaken me, but the Lord will take me in.

235. See God's goodness (Psalm 27:13)

I believe that I shall look upon the goodness of the Lord in the land of the living!

236. God sits enthroned (Psalm 29:10)

The Lord sits enthroned over the flood; the Lord sits enthroned as king forever.

237. Grace is everlasting (Psalm 30:5)

For his anger is but for a moment, and his favor is for a lifetime. Weeping may tarry for the night, but joy comes with the morning.

238. Abundnant goodness (Psalm 31:19)

Oh, how abundant is your goodness, which you have stored up for those who fear you and worked for those who take refuge in you, in the sight of the children of mankind!

239. Preserves the faithful (Psalm 31:23)

Love the Lord, all you his saints! The Lord preserves the faithful but abundantly repays the one who acts in pride.

240. Hiding place (Psalm 32:6-7)

Therefore let everyone who is godly offer prayer to you at a time when you may be found; surely in the rush of great waters, they shall not reach him. You are a hiding place for me; you preserve me from trouble; you surround me with shouts of deliverance.

241. Surrounded by love (Psalm 32:10)

Many are the sorrows of the wicked, but steadfast love surrounds the one who trusts in the Lord.

242. Blessed is the nation (Psalm 33:12)

Blessed is the nation whose God is the Lord, the people whom he has chosen as his heritage!

243. God's eye watches (Psalm 33:18)

Behold, the eye of the Lord is on those who fear him, on those who hope in his steadfast love.

244. Radiant (Psalm 34:5)

Those who look to him are radiant, and their faces shall never be ashamed.

245. Delivers those who fear Him (Psalm 34:7)

The angel of the Lord encamps around those who fear him, and delivers them.

246. Lack nothing (Psalm 34:9-10)

Oh, fear the Lord, you his saints, for those who fear him have no lack! The young lions suffer want and hunger; but those who seek the Lord lack no good thing.

247. Caring for the righteous (Psalm 34:15)

The eyes of the Lord are toward the righteous and his ears toward their cry.

248. Shout for joy (Psalm 35:27)

Let those who delight in my righteousness shout for joy and be glad and say evermore, "Great is the Lord, who delights in the welfare of his servant!"

249. He will see light (Psalm 36:9)

For with you is the fountain of life; in your light do we see light.

250. Give you your heart's desires (Psalm 37:4-5)

Delight yourself in the Lord, and he will give you the desires of your heart. Commit your way to the Lord; trust in him, and he will act.

251. Inherit the land (Psalm 37:11)

But the meek shall inherit the land and delight themselves in abundant peace.

252. Their heritage remains forever (Psalm 37:18)

The Lord knows the days of the blameless, and their heritage will remain forever;

253. Steps established by the Lord (Psalm 37:23)

The steps of a man are established by the Lord, when he delights in his way;

254. Peace (Psalm 37:37)

Mark the blameless and behold the upright, for there is a future for the man of peace.

255. Hope in the Lord (Psalm 39:7-9)

And now, O Lord, for what do I wait? My hope is in you. Deliver me from all my transgressions. Do not make me the scorn of the fool! I am mute; I do not open my mouth, for it is you who have done it.

256. Innumerable (Psalm 40:5)

You have multiplied, O Lord my God, your wondrous deeds and your thoughts toward us; none can compare with you! I will proclaim and tell of them, yet they are more than can be told.

257. Deliverance (Psalm 41:1)

Blessed is the one who considers the poor! In the day of trouble the Lord delivers him.

258. Restore to health (Psalm 41:3)

The Lord sustains him on his sickbed; in his illness you restore him to full health.

259. In the presences of God (Psalm 41:12)

But you have upheld me because of my integrity, and set me in your presence forever.

260. Salvation (Psalm 42:5, 11; 43:5; 44:3)

Why are you cast down, O my soul, and why are you in turmoil within me? Hope in God; for I shall again praise him, my salvation.

261. God of joy (Psalm 43:4)

Then I will go to the altar of God, to God my exceeding joy, and I will praise you with the lyre, O God, my God.

262. Ordain salvation (Psalm 44:4)

You are my King, O God; ordain salvation for Jacob!

263. Oil of gladness (Psalm 45:7)

You have loved righteousness and hated wickedness. Therefore God, your God, has anointed you with the oil of gladness beyond your companions;

264. Refuge and strength (Psalm 46:1)

God is our refuge and strength, a very present help in trouble.

265. Fortress (Psalm 46:1, 11; 48:2)

The Lord of hosts is with us; the God of Jacob is our fortress.

266. He will guide us (Psalm 48:14)

This is God, our God forever and ever. He will guide us forever.

267. Ransom from Sheol (Psalm 49:15)

But God will ransom my soul from the power of Sheol, for he will receive me.

268. Offering thanksgiving (Psalm 50:14)

Offer to God a sacrifice of thanksgiving, and perform your vows to the Most High.

269. Clean Heart (Psalm 51:10)

Create in me a clean heart, O God, and renew a right spirit within me.

270. Broken spirit (Psalm 51:17)

The sacrifices of God are a broken spirit; a broken and contrite heart, O God, you will not despise.

271. Cast your burdens on God (Psalm 55:22)

Cast your burden on the Lord, and he will sustain you; he will never permit the righteous to be moved.

272. Trust God without fear (Psalm 56:4)

In God, whose word I praise, in God I trust; I shall not be afraid. What can flesh do to me?

273. Written in the book (Psalm 56:8)

You have kept count of my tossings; put my tears in your bottle. Are they not in your book?

274. Fulfillment (Psalm 57:2)

I cry out to God Most High, to God who fulfills his purpose for me.

275. God judges the earth (Psalm 58:11)

Mankind will say, "Surely there is a reward for the righteous; surely there is a God who judges on earth."

276. Tread down foes (Psalm 60:12)

With God we shall do valiantly; it is he who will tread down our foes.

277. Dwell in God's tent (Psalm 61:4)

Let me dwell in your tent forever! Let me take refuge under the shelter of your wings!

278. Wait for God (Psalm 62:1, 5)

For God alone, O my soul, wait in silence, for my hope is from him.

279. See the glory of God (Psalm 63:2)

So I have looked upon you in the sanctuary, beholding your power and glory.

280. His right hand upholds me (Psalm 63:8)

My soul clings to you; your right hand upholds me.

281. In the courts of God (Psalm 65:4)

Blessed is the one you choose and bring near, to dwell in your courts! We shall be satisfied with the goodness of your house, the holiness of your temple!

282. Abundance (Psalm 65:11)

You crown the year with your bounty; your wagon tracks overflow with abundance.

283. The place of abundance (Psalm 66:12)

You let men ride over our heads; we went through fire and through water; yet you have brought us out to a place of abundance.

284. God has not removed his steadfast love (Psalm 66:20)

Blessed be God, because he has not rejected my prayer or removed his steadfast love from me!

285. The solitary has a home (Psalm 68:6)

God settles the solitary in a home; he leads out the prisoners to prosperity, but the rebellious dwell in a parched land.

286. Bears us up (Psalm 68:19)

Blessed be the Lord, who daily bears us up; God is our salvation.

287. Revive hearts (Psalm 69:32)

When the humble see it they will be glad; you who seek God, let your hearts revive.

288. Never forsakes in old age (Psalm 71:9, 18)

Do not cast me off in the time of old age; forsake me not when my strength is spent.

289. He will bring up (Psalm 71:20)

You who have made me see many troubles and calamities will revive me again; from the depths of the earth you will bring me up again.

290. Wonderful (Psalm 72:18-19)

Blessed be the Lord, the God of Israel, who alone does wondrous things. Blessed be his glorious name forever; may the whole earth be filled with his glory!

291. Receiving glory (Psalm 73:24-25)

You guide me with your counsel, and afterward you will receive me to glory. Whom have I in heaven but you? And there is nothing on earth that I desire besides you.

292. Lift us up (Psalm 75:6-7)

For not from the east or from the west and not from the wilderness comes lifting up, but it is God who executes judgment, putting down one and lifting up another.

293. Remnant of wrath (Psalm 76:10)

Surely the wrath of man shall praise you; the remnant of wrath you will put on like a belt.

294. Fill our mouths (Psalm 81:10)

I am the Lord your God, who brought you up out of the land of Egypt. Open your mouth wide, and I will fill it.

295. God's dwelling place (Psalm 84:11-4)

How lovely is your dwelling place, O Lord of hosts! My soul longs, yes, faints for the courts of the Lord; my heart and flesh sing for joy to the living God. Even the sparrow finds a home, and the swallow a nest for herself, where she may lay her young, at your altars, O Lord of hosts, my King and my God. Blessed are those who dwell in your house, ever singing your praise!

296. Strength (Psalm 84:5-7)

Blessed are those whose strength is in you, in whose heart are the highways to Zion. As they go through the Valley of Baca they make it a place of springs; the early rain also covers it with pools. They go from strength to strength; each one appears before God in Zion.

297. Withholds no good thing (Psalm 84:11-12)

For the Lord God is a sun and shield; the Lord bestows favor and honor. No good thing does he withhold from those who walk uprightly. O Lord of hosts, blessed is the one who trusts in you!

298. Peace (Psalm 85:8)

Let me hear what God the Lord will speak, for he will speak peace to his people, to his saints; but let them not turn back to folly.

299. Walk in the light (Psalm 89:14-15)

Righteousness and justice are the foundation of your throne; steadfast love and faithfulness go before you. Blessed are the people who know the festal shout, who walk, O Lord, in the light of your face.

300. Do not break the covenant (Psalm 89:34)

I will not violate my covenant or alter the word that went forth from my lips.

301. Dwelling place (Psalm 90:1)

Lord, you have been our dwelling place in all generations.

302. Establish the work of our hands (Psalm 90:17)

Let the favor of the Lord our God be upon us, and establish the work of our hands upon us; yes, establish the work of our hands!

303. Calamity will not come near (Psalm 91:7)

A thousand may fall at your side, ten thousand at your right hand, but it will not come near you.

304. Long life (Psalm 91:14-16)

Because he holds fast to me in love, I will deliver him; I will protect him, because he knows my name. When he calls to me, I will answer him; I will be with him in trouble; I will rescue him and honor him. With long life I will satisfy him and show him my salvation.

305. Bear fruits in old age (Psalms 92:12, 14)

They still bear fruit in old age; they are ever full of sap and green.

306. Rest (Psalm 94:12-13)

Blessed is the man whom you discipline, O Lord, and whom you teach out of your law, to give him rest from days of trouble, until a pit is dug for the wicked.

307. Joy (Psalm 97:10-11)

O you who love the Lord, hate evil! He preserves the lives of his saints; he delivers them from the hand of the wicked. Light is sown for the righteous, and joy for the upright in heart.

308. Dwell with God (Psalm 101:6)

I will look with favor on the faithful in the land, that they may dwell with me; he who walks in the way that is blameless shall minister to me.

309. Establish your offspring (Psalm 102:27-28)

But you are the same, and your years have no end. The children of your servants shall dwell secure; their offspring shall be established before you.

310. Forgives, heals, and redeems (Psalm 103:3-5)

He forgives all your iniquity, heals all your diseases, redeems your life from the pit, crowns you with steadfast love and mercy, satisfies you with good so that your youth is renewed like the eagle's.

311. His love is great (Psalm 103:11-12)

For as high as the heavens are above the earth, so great is his steadfast love toward those who fear him; as far as the east is from the west, so far does he remove our transgressions from us.

312. Meditation pleasing to God (Psalm 104:34)

May my meditation be pleasing to him, for I rejoice in the Lord.

313. Word of God fulfilled (Psalm 105:19)

Until what he had said came to pass, the word of the Lord tested him.

314. Blessed is righteous (Psalm 106:3)

Blessed are they who observe justice, who do righteousness at all times!

315. Deliverance from trouble (Psalm 107:6, 13, 19, 28)

Then they cried to the Lord in their trouble, and he delivered them from their distress.

316. Blessed is he who fears the Lord (Psalm 112:1; 119:1)

Blessed is the man who fears the Lord, who greatly delights in his commandments!

317. Do not fear bad news (Psalm 112:7)

He is not afraid of bad news; his heart is firm, trusting in the Lord.

318. Fear the Lord (Psalm 115:13)

He will bless those who fear the Lord, both the small and the great.

319. My strength and song (Psalm 118:14)

The Lord is my strength and my song; he has become my salvation.

320. God made today (Psalm 118:24)

This is the day that the Lord has made; let us rejoice and be glad in it.

321. Suffering is good (Psalm 119:71)

It is good for me that I was afflicted, that I might learn your statutes.

322. God's Word is Light (Psalms 119:103, 105, 130)

Your word is a lamp to my feet and a light to my path.

323. Love God's law (Psalm 119:165)

Great peace have those who love your law; nothing can make them stumble.

324. God is our keeper (Psalm 121:4-8)

Behold, he who keeps Israel will neither slumber nor sleep. The Lord is your keeper; the Lord is your shade on your right hand. The sun shall not strike you by day, nor the moon by night. The Lord will keep you from all evil; he will keep your life. The Lord will keep your going out and your coming in from this time forth and forevermore.

325. Cannot be moved (Psalm 125:1)

Those who trust in the Lord are like Mount Zion, which cannot be moved, but abides forever.

326. Shouts of joy (Psalm 126:5-6)

Those who sow in tears shall reap with shouts of joy! He who goes out weeping, bearing the seed for sowing, shall come home with shouts of joy, bringing his sheaves with him.

327. Wife and children are blessed (Psalm 128:3-4)

Your wife will be like a fruitful vine within your house; your children will be like olive shoots around your table. Behold, thus shall the man be blessed who fears the Lord.

328. God chose Zion (Psalm 132:13-14)

For the Lord has chosen Zion; he has desired it for his dwelling place: This is my resting place forever; here I will dwell, for I have desired it.

329. Dwell in unity (Psalm 133:1-3)

Behold, how good and pleasant it is when brothers dwell in unity! It is like the precious oil on the head, running down on the beard, on the beard of Aaron, running down on the collar of his robes! It is like the dew of Hermon, which falls on the mountains of Zion! For there the Lord has commanded the blessing, life forevermore.

330. His love endures forever (Psalm 136:1)

Give thanks to the Lord, for he is good. His love endures forever.

331. He will be fulfilled (Psalm 138:2, 8)

The Lord will fulfill his purpose for me; your steadfast love, O Lord, endures forever. Do not forsake the work of your hands.

332. How precious (Psalm 139:17-18)

How precious to me are your thoughts, O God! How vast is the sum of them! If I would count them, they are more than the sand. I awake, and I am still with you.

333. Prayer is incense (Psalm 141:2)

Let my prayer be counted as incense before you, and the lifting up of my hands as the evening sacrifice!

334. Good to all (Psalm 145:9)

The Lord is good to all, and his mercy is over all that he has made.

335. The Lord is righteous (Psalms 145:17-19)

The Lord is righteous in all his ways and kind in all his works. The Lord is near to all who call on him, to all who call on him in truth. He fulfills the desire of those who fear him; he also hears their cry and saves them.

336. Executes justice (Psalm 146:7, 9)

He executes justice for the oppressed and gives food to the hungry. The Lord sets the prisoners free; The Lord watches over the sojourners; he upholds the widow and the fatherless, but the way of the wicked he brings to ruin.

337. Heals the brokenhearted (Psalm 147:3-4)

He heals the brokenhearted and binds up their wounds. He determines the number of the stars; he gives to all of them their names.

338. Hope in His love (Psalm 147:10-11)

He does not like the strength of horses and does not like the fast legs of people. His delight is not in the strength of the horse, nor his pleasure in the legs of a man. but the Lord takes pleasure in those who fear him, in those who hope in his steadfast love.

339. Honor for the godly (Psalm 149:9)

...to execute on them the judgment written! This is honor for all his godly ones.

340. Pour out His Spirit (Proverbs 1:23)

If you turn at my reproof, behold, I will pour out my spirit to you; I will make my words known to you.

341. He will show the way (Proverbs 3:5-6)

Trust in the Lord with all your heart, and do not lean on your own understanding. In all your ways acknowledge him, and he will make straight your paths.

342. Blesses the righteous (Proverbs 3:33-34)

The Lord's curse is on the house of the wicked but he blesses the dwelling of the righteous. Toward the scorners he is scornful, but to the humble he gives favor.

343. Shines brighter (Proverbs 4:18)

But the path of the righteous is like the light of dawn, which shines brighter and brighter until full day.

344. Healing (Proverbs 4:22-23)

For they are life to those who find them, and healing to all their flesh. Keep your heart with all vigilance, for from it flow the springs of life.

345. The commandment is the lamp (Proverbs 6:23)

For the commandment is a lamp and the teaching a light, and the reproofs of discipline are the way of life.

346. Finds life (Proverbs 8:34-35)

Blessed is the one who listens to me, watching daily at my gates, waiting beside my doors. For whoever finds me finds life and obtains favor from the Lord.

347. The fear of the Lord is wisdom (Proverbs 9:10; 10:27)

The fear of the Lord is the beginning of wisdom, and the knowledge of the Holy One is insight.

348. Makes people rich (Proverbs 10:22)

The blessing of the Lord makes rich, and he adds no sorrow with it.

349. Enriched (Proverbs 11:25)

Whoever brings blessing will be enriched, and one who waters will himself be watered.

350. Preserve your life (Proverbs 13:3)

Whoever guards his mouth preserves his life; he who opens wide his lips comes to ruin.

351. Fear God (Proverbs 14:26-27; 15:33; 14:26; 15:33)

In the fear of the Lord one has strong confidence, and his children will have a refuge.

352. Righteousness (Proverbs 14:34; 16:12)

Righteousness exalts a nation, but sin is a reproach to any people.

353. Keeping wath (Proverbs 15:3)

The eyes of the Lord are in every place, keeping watch on the evil and the good.

354. Hears prayer (Proverbs 15:29; 10:3, 11, 16, 24, 28, 30, 32; 11:8, 10, 21, 28)

The Lord is far from the wicked, but he hears the prayer of the righteous.

355. Entrusted to fulfillment (Proverbs 16:3)

Commit your work to the Lord, and your plans will be established.

356. Reconcile the enemy (Proverbs 16:7)

When a man's ways please the Lord, he makes even his enemies to be at peace with him.

357. Every decision is from God (Proverbs 16:33)

The lot is cast into the lap, but its every decision is from the Lord.

358. Strong tower (Proverbs 18:10)

The name of the Lord is a strong tower; the righteous man runs into it and is safe.

359. Humility before honor (Proverbs 18:12)

Before destruction a man's heart is haughty, but humility comes before honor.

360. Receives a good wife (Proverbs 18:22; 19:14)

He who finds a wife finds a good thing and obtains favor from the Lord.

361. Repays good deeds (Proverbs 19:17)

Whoever is generous to the poor lends to the Lord, and he will repay him for his deed.

362. Satisfied (Proverbs 19:23; 25:21-22)

The fear of the Lord leads to life, and whoever has it rests satisfied; he will not be visited by harm.

363. God rewards (Proverbs 22:4, 23:17-18; 24:21; 28:14)

The reward for humility and fear of the Lord is riches and honor and life.

364. Will rise up (Proverbs 24:16)

For the righteous will rise up even though he falls seven times But the wicked are poured out by calamity.

365. Understand justice (Proverbs 28:5)

Evil men do not understand justice, but those who seek the Lord understand it completely.

366. Obtain mercy (Proverbs 28:13)

Whoever conceals his transgressions will not prosper, but he who confesses and forsakes them will obtain mercy.

367. Blessed is he who keeps the law (Proverbs 29:18)

Where there is no prophetic vision the people cast off restraint, but blessed is he who keeps the law.

368. God's words are true (Proverbs 30:5; Psalm 12:6)

Every word of God proves true; he is a shield to those who take refuge in him.

369. Praise will be received (Proverbs 31:30)

Charm is deceitful, and beauty is vain, but a woman who fears the Lord is to be praised.

370. There is a time for everything (Ecclesiastes 3:1, 11; 8:6)

For everything there is a season, and a time for every matter under heaven.

371. God's gift (Ecclesiastes 5:19-20)

Everyone also to whom God has given wealth and possessions and power to enjoy them, and to accept his lot and rejoice in his toil—this is the gift of God. For he will not much remember the days of his life because God keeps him occupied with joy in his heart.

372. Blessed are those who fear God (Ecclesiastes 8:12; 7:18; 12:13)

Though a sinner does evil a hundred times and prolongs his life, yet I know that it will be well with those who fear God, because they fear before him.

373. God will judge (Ecclesiastes 12:14; 11:9)

For God will bring every deed into judgment, with every secret thing, whether good or evil.

374. God's beloved (Song of Solomon 2:16)

My beloved is mine, and I am his; he grazes among the lilies.

375. Desirable (Song of Solomon 5:10, 16)

My beloved is radiant and ruddy, distinguished among ten thousand. His mouth is most sweet, and he is altogether desirable. This is my beloved and this is my friend, O daughters of Jerusalem.

4. Major Prophets

376. Turn white as snow (Isaiah 1:18)

Learn to do good; seek justice, correct oppression; bring justice to the fatherless, plead the widow's cause.

377. Teach us His ways (Isaiah 2:3)

Come, let us go up to the mountain of the Lord, to the house of the God of Jacob, that he may teach us his ways and that we may walk in his paths. For out of Zion shall go forth the law, and the word of the Lord from Jerusalem.

378. There shall be shelter (Isaiah 4:5-6; 25:4; 32:2)

For you have been a stronghold to the poor, a stronghold to the needy in his distress, a shelter from the storm and a shade from the heat; for the breath of the ruthless is like a storm against a wall.

379. Immanuel (Isaiah 7:14)

Therefore the Lord himself will give you a sign. Behold, the virgin shall conceive and bear a son, and shall call his name Immanuel.

380. Prince of Peace (Isaiah 9:6-7)

For to us a child is born, to us a son is given; and the government shall be upon his shoulder, and his name shall be called Wonderful Counselor, Mighty God, Everlasting Father, Prince of Peace.

381. Spirit of wisdom (Isaiah 11:2)

And the Spirit of the Lord shall rest upon him, the Spirit of wisdom and understanding, the Spirit of counsel and might, the Spirit of knowledge and the fear of the Lord.

382. Full of knowledge (Isaiah 11:9)

They shall not hurt or destroy in all my holy mountain; for the earth shall be full of the knowledge of the Lord as the waters cover the sea.

383. Take water with joy (Isaiah 12:3)

With joy you will draw water from the wells of salvation.

384. He will swallow up death (Isaiah 25:8)

He will swallow up death forever; and the Lord God will wipe away tears from all faces, and the reproach of his people he will take away from all the earth, for the Lord has spoken.

385. Be glad and rejoice (Isaiah 25:9)

Behold, this is our God; we have waited for him, that he might save us. This is the Lord; we have waited for him; let us be glad and rejoice in his salvation.

386. Peace (Isaiah 26:3, 12; 32:17-18)

You keep him in perfect peace whose mind is stayed on you, because he trusts in you.

387. Fury passed by (Isaiah 26:20)

Come, my people, enter your chambers, and shut your doors behind you; hide yourselves for a little while until the fury has passed by.

388. Guard it night and day (Isaiah 27:3)

I, the Lord, am its keeper; every moment I water it. Lest anyone punish it, I keep it night and day.

389. Not be in haste (Isaiah 28:16)

Behold, I am the one who has laid as a foundation in Zion, a stone, a tested stone, a precious cornerstone, of a sure foundation: "Whoever believes will not be in haste."

390. Return and rest (Isaiah 30:15)

In returning and rest you shall be saved; in quietness and in trust shall be your strength.

391. Blessed are those who wait for him (Isaiah 30:18)

Therefore the Lord waits to be gracious to you, and therefore he exalts himself to show mercy to you. For the Lord is a God of justice; blessed are all those who wait for him.

392. Not hide (Isaiah 30:20-21)

And though the Lord give you the bread of adversity and the water of affliction, yet your Teacher will not hide himself anymore, but your eyes shall see your Teacher. And your ears shall hear a word behind you, saying, "This is the way, walk in it," when you turn to the right or when you turn to the left.

393. Protect Jerusalem (Isaiah 31:5)

Like birds hovering, so the Lord of hosts will protect Jerusalem; he will protect and deliver it; he will spare and rescue it.

394. The outpouring of the Holy Spirit (Isaiah 32:15; 44:3)

For I will pour water on the thirsty land, and streams on the dry ground; I will pour my Spirit upon your offspring, and my blessing on your descendants.

395. Stability (Isaiah 33:6)

He will be the stability of your times, abundance of salvation, wisdom, and knowledge; the fear of the Lord is Zion's treasure.

```
396. Healing (Isaiah 35:5-6; 41:18)
```

Then the eyes of the blind shall be opened, and the ears of the deaf unstopped; then shall the lame man leap like a deer, and the tongue of the mute sing for joy. For waters break forth in the wilderness, and streams in the desert.

397. Comfort (Isaiah 40:1)

Comfort, comfort my people, says your God.

398. Like a shepherd (Isaiah 40:10-11)

Behold, the Lord God comes with might, and his arm rules for him; behold, his reward is with him, and his recompense before him. He will tend his flock like a shepherd; he will gather the lambs in his arms; he will carry them in his bosom, and gently lead those that are with young.

399. Renew their strength (Isaiah 40:31)

But they who wait for the Lord shall renew their strength; they shall mount up with wings like eagles; they shall run and not be weary; they shall walk and not faint.

400. Helps us (Isaiah 41:12-15)

You shall seek those who contend with you, but you shall not find them; those who war against you shall be as nothing at all. For I, the Lord your God, hold your right hand; it is I who say to you, "Fear not, I am the one who helps you." Fear not, you worm Jacob, you men of Israel! I am the one who helps you, declares the Lord; your Redeemer is the Holy One of Israel. Behold, I make of you a threshing sledge, new, sharp, and having teeth; you shall thresh the mountains and crush them, and you shall make the hills like chaff.

401. Servant of God (Isaiah 42:1-4; 49:1-3, 5-6, 8, 9; 61:1-3)

Behold my servant, whom I uphold, my chosen, in whom my soul delights; I have put my Spirit upon him; he will bring forth justice to the nations. He will not cry aloud or lift up his voice, or make it heard in the street; a bruised reed he will not break, and a faintly burning wick he will not quench; he will faithfully bring forth justice. He will not grow faint or be discouraged till he has established justice in the earth; and the coastlands wait for his law.

402. Will not be consumed (Isaiah 43:2, 4)

When you pass through the waters, I will be with you; and through the rivers, they shall not overwhelm you; when you walk through fire you shall not be burned, and the flame shall not consume you.

403. Blot out transgression (Isaiah 43:25; 44:22)

I am he who blots out your transgressions for my own sake, and I will not remember your sins.

404. Give treasures (Isaiah 45:2-3)

I will go before you and level the exalted places, I will break in pieces the doors of bronze and cut through the bars of iron, I will give you the treasures of darkness and the hoards in secret places, that you may know that it is I, the Lord, the God of Israel, who call you by your name.

405. Ask of things to come (Isaiah 45:11)

Thus says the Lord, the Holy One of Israel, and the one who formed him: "Ask me of things to come; will you command me concerning my children and the work of my hands?"

406. Turn to God for salvation (Isaiah 45:22)

Turn to me and be saved, all the ends of the earth! For I am God, and there is no other.

407. Until old age (Isaiah 46:4)

Even to your old age I am he, and to gray hairs I will carry you. I have made, and I will bear; I will carry and will save.

408. Furnace of affliction (Isaiah 48:10)

Behold, I have refined you, but not as silver; I have tried you in the furnace of affliction.

409. Springs of water (Isaiah 49:10-12)

They shall not hunger or thirst, neither scorching wind nor sun shall strike them, for he who has pity on them will lead them, and by springs of water will guide them. And I will make all my mountains a road, and my highways shall be raised up. Behold, these shall come from afar, and behold, these from the north and from the west, and these from the land of Syene.

410. Never forget (Isaiah 49:15-16)

Can a woman forget her nursing child, that she should have no compassion on the son of her womb? Even these may forget, yet I will not forget you. Behold, I have engraved you on the palms of my hands; your walls are continually before me.

411. Save our children (Isaiah 49:25)

Even the captives of the mighty shall be taken, and the prey of the tyrant be rescued, for I will contend with those who contend with you, and I will save your children.

412. Salvation lasts forever (Isaiah 51:6-7, 11)

Lift up your eyes to the heavens, and look at the earth beneath; for the heavens vanish like smoke, the earth will wear out like a garment, and they who dwell in it will die in like manner; but my salvation will be forever, and my righteousness will never be dismayed

413. Feet of those who brings good news (Isaiah 52:7)

How beautiful upon the mountains are the feet of him who brings good news, who publishes peace, who brings good news of happiness, who publishes salvation, who says to Zion, "Your God reigns."

414. Healed (Isaiah 53:5)

But he was pierced for our transgressions; he was crushed for our iniquities; upon him was the chastisement that brought us peace, and with his wounds we are healed.

415. Laid on Him the iniquity of all (Isaiah 53:6)

All we like sheep have gone astray; we have turned—every one—to his own way; and the Lord has laid on him the iniquity of us all.

416. Righteous (Isaiah 53:11-12)

Out of the anguish of his soul he shall see and be satisfied; by his knowledge shall the righteous one, my servant, make many to be accounted righteous, and he shall bear their iniquities. Therefore I will divide him a portion with the many, and he shall divide the spoil with the strong, because he poured out his soul to death and was numbered with the transgressors; yet he bore the sin of many, and makes intercession for the transgressors.

417. Left and right (Isaiah 54:2-3)

Enlarge the place of your tent, and let the curtains of your habitations be stretched out; do not hold back; lengthen your cords and strengthen your stakes. For you will spread abroad to the right and to the left, and your offspring will possess the nations and will people the desolate cities.

418. His love will not depart (Isaiah 54:10)

For the mountains may depart and the hills be removed, but my steadfast love shall not depart from you, and my covenant of peace shall not be removed.

419. Refute every tongue (Isaiah 54:17)

No weapon that is fashioned against you shall succeed, and you shall refute every tongue that rises against you in judgment. This is the heritage of the servants of the Lord and their vindication from me, declares the Lord.

420. Eat what is good (Isaiah 55:2)

Why do you spend your money for that which is not bread, and your labor for that which does not satisfy? Listen diligently to me, and eat what is good, and delight yourselves in rich food.

421. Succeed (Isaiah 55:9, 11)

For as the heavens are higher than the earth, so are my ways higher than your ways and my thoughts than your thoughts... so shall my word be that goes out from my mouth; it shall not return to me empty, but it shall accomplish that which I purpose, and shall succeed in the thing for which I sent it.

422. Inhabits eternity (Isaiah 57:15)

For thus says the One who is high and lifted up, who inhabits eternity, whose name is Holy: "I dwell in the high and holy place, and also with him who is of a contrite and lowly spirit, to revive the spirit of the lowly, and to revive the heart of the contrite."

423. Always guide (Isaiah 58:11)

And the Lord will guide you continually and satisfy your desire in scorched places and make your bones strong; and you shall be like a watered garden, like a spring of water, whose waters do not fail.

424. The Spirit speaks (Isaiah 59:21)

"And as for me, this is my covenant with them," says the Lord: "My Spirit that is upon you, and my words that I have put in your mouth, shall not depart out of your mouth, or out of the mouth of your offspring, or out of the mouth of your children's offspring," says the Lord, "from this time forth and forevermore."

425. Shine (Isaiah 60:1-3, 19)

Arise, shine, for your light has come, and the glory of the Lord has risen upon you. For behold, darkness shall cover the earth, and thick darkness the peoples; but the Lord will arise upon you, and his glory will be seen upon you. And nations shall come to your light, and kings to the brightness of your rising.

426. Open gates (Isaiah 61:10-11)

Foreigners shall build up your walls, and their kings shall minister to you; for in my wrath I struck you, but in my favor I have had mercy on you. Your gates shall be open continually; day and night they shall not be shut, that people may bring to you the wealth of the nations, with their kings led in procession.

427. The Lord delights in you (Isaiah 62:3-5)

You shall be a crown of beauty in the hand of the Lord, and a royal diadem in the hand of your God You shall no more be termed Forsaken, and your land shall no more be termed Desolate, but you shall be called My Delight Is in Her, and your land Married; for the Lord delights in you, and your land shall be married. For as a young man marries a young woman, so shall your sons marry you, and as the bridegroom rejoices over the bride, so shall your God rejoice over you. 428. Suffering together (Isaiah 63:9)

In all their affliction he was afflicted, and the angel of his presence saved them; in his love and in his pity he redeemed them; he lifted them up and carried them all the days of old.

429. Act for others (Isaiah 64:4)

From of old no one has heard or perceived by the ear, no eye has seen a God besides you, who acts for those who wait for him.

430. God is our potter (Isaiah 64:8)

But now, O Lord, you are our Father; we are the clay, and you are our potter; we are all the work of your hand.

431. Create a new heaven and earth (Isaiah 65:17)

For behold, I create new heavens and a new earth, and the former things shall not be remembered or come into mind.

432. God will hear and answer (Isaiah 65:24)

Before they call I will answer; while they are yet speaking I will hear.

433. Be humble (Isaiah 66:2)

All these things my hand has made, and so all these things came to be, declares the Lord. But this is the one to whom I will look: he who is humble and contrite in spirit and trembles at my word.

434. She will give birth to a boy (Isaiah 66:7)

Before she was in labor she gave birth; before her pain came upon her she delivered a son.

435. Comfort (Isaiah 66:13)

As one whom his mother comforts, so I will comfort you; you shall be comforted in Jerusalem.

436. Consecrated (Jeremiah 1:5)

Before I formed you in the womb I knew you, and before you were born I consecrated you; I appointed you a prophet to the nations.

437. Merciful (Jeremiah 3:12, 22; 4:1)

Go, and proclaim these words toward the north, and say, "Return, faithless Israel, declares the Lord. I will not look on you in anger, for I am merciful, declares the Lord; I will not be angry forever."

438. Everlasting King (Jeremiah 10:10)

But the Lord is the true God; he is the living God and the everlasting King. At his wrath the earth quakes, and the nations cannot endure his indignation.

439. The Lord of hosts (Jeremiah 10:16)

Not like these is he who is the portion of Jacob, for he is the one who formed all things, and Israel is the tribe of his inheritance; the Lord of hosts is his name.

440. God directs his steps (Jeremiah 10:23)

I know, O Lord, that the way of man is not in himself, that it is not in man who walks to direct his steps.

441. Bring them back to their land (Jeremiah 12:15)

And after I have plucked them up, I will again have compassion on them, and I will bring them again each to his heritage and each to his land.

442. Eat the Word of God (Jeremiah 15:16)

Your words were found, and I ate them, and your words became to me a joy and the delight of my heart, for I am called by your name, O Lord, God of hosts.

443. As God's mouth (Jeremiah 15:19)

If you return, I will restore you, and you shall stand before me. If you utter what is precious, and not what is worthless, you shall be as my mouth. They shall turn to you, but you shall not turn to them.

444. Refuge (Jeremiah 16:19)

O Lord, my strength and my stronghold, my refuge in the day of trouble, to you shall the nations come from the ends of the earth and say: "Our fathers have inherited nothing but lies, worthless things in which there is no profit."

445. Blessed is he who trusts God (Jeremiah 17:7-8)

Blessed is the man who trusts in the Lord, whose trust is the Lord. He is like a tree planted by water, that sends out its roots by the stream, and does not fear when heat comes, for its leaves remain green, and is not anxious in the year of drought, for it does not cease to bear fruit.

446. God prevailed (Jeremiah 20:7)

O Lord, you have deceived me, and I was deceived; you are stronger than I, and you have prevailed. I have become a laughingstock all the day; everyone mocks me.

447. Raise up a righteous Branch (Jeremiah 23:5; 33:14-15, 26)

Behold, the days are coming, declares the Lord, when I will raise up for David a righteous Branch, and he shall reign as king and deal wisely, and shall execute justice and righteousness in the land.

448. God's word is like fire (Jeremiah 23:29)

Is not my word like fire, declares the Lord, and like a hammer that breaks the rock in pieces?

449. Seek welfare (Jeremiah 29:7)

But seek the welfare of the city where I have sent you into exile, and pray to the Lord on its behalf, for in its welfare you will find your welfare.

450. Plans for welfare (Jeremiah 29:11)

For I know the plans I have for you, declares the Lord, plans for welfare and not for evil, to give you a future and a hope.

451. Everlasting love (Jeremiah 31:3)

The Lord appeared to him from far away. I have loved you with an everlasting love; therefore I have continued my faithfulness to you.

452. The covenant (Jeremiah 31:33)

For this is the covenant that I will make with the house of Israel after those days, declares the Lord: I will put my law within them, and I will write it on their hearts. And I will be their God, and they shall be my people.

453. Nothing is too hard for God (Jeremiah 32:17, 27)

Ah, Lord God! It is you who have made the heavens and the earth by your great power and by your outstretched arm! Nothing is too hard for you.

454. Instructions are difficult (Jeremiah 33:3)

Call to me and I will answer you, and will tell you great and hidden things that you have not known.

455. Way to Zion (Jeremiah 50: 4-5)

In those days and in that time, declares the Lord, the people of Israel and the people of Judah shall come together, weeping as they come, and they shall seek the Lord their God. They shall ask the way to Zion, with faces turned toward it, saying, 'Come, let us join ourselves to the Lord in an everlasting covenant that will never be forgotten.'

456. God's love (Lamentations 3:22-23)

The steadfast love of the Lord never ceases; his mercies never come to an end; they are new every morning; great is your faithfulness.

457. Not cast off forever (Lamentations 3:31-33)

For the Lord will not cast off forever, but, though he cause grief, he will have compassion according to the abundance of his steadfast love; for he does not afflict from his heart or grieve the children of men.

458. Pray for renewal (Lamentations 5:21)

Restore us to yourself, O Lord, that we may be restored! Renew our days as of old.

459. Sees visions (Ezekiel 1:1)

In the thirtieth year, in the fourth month, on the fifth day of the month, as I was among the exiles by the Chebar canal, the heavens were opened, and I saw visions of God.

460. Glorious image (Ezekiel 1:26, 28)

And aove the expanse over their heads there was the likeness of a throne, in appearance like sapphire; and seated above the likeness of a throne was a likeness with a human appearance.

461. Watchman (Ezekiel 3:17)

Son of man, I have made you a watchman for the house of Israel. Whenever you hear a word from my mouth, you shall give them warning from me.

462. God's word will be done (Ezekiel 12:28)

Thus says the Lord God: None of my words will be delayed any longer, but the word that I speak will be performed.

463. Make a new heart for yourself (Ezekiel 18:31)

Cast away from you all the transgressions that you have committed, and make yourselves a new heart and a new spirit! Why will you die, O house of Israel?

464. Shall live (Ezekiel 33:18-19)

When the righteous turns from his righteousness and does injustice, he shall die for it. And when the wicked turns from his wickedness and does what is just and right, he shall live by this.

465. Shepherd (Ezekiel 34:23)

And I will set up over them one shepherd, my servant David, and he shall feed them: he shall feed them and be their shepherd.

466. Showers of blessing (Ezekiel 34:26)

And I will make them and the places all around my hill a blessing, and I will send down the showers in their season; they shall be showers of blessing.

467. The number of people will increase (Ezekiel 36:10-11)

And I will multiply people on you, the whole house of Israel, all of it. The cities shall be inhabited and the waste places rebuilt. And I will multiply on you man and beast, and they shall multiply and be fruitful. And I will cause you to be inhabited as in your former times, and will do more good to you than ever before. Then you will know that I am the Lord.

468. Resurrect (Ezekiel 37:6, 10)

And I will lay sinews upon you, and will cause flesh to come upon you, and cover you with skin, and put breath in you, and you shall live, and you shall know that I am the Lord... So I prophesied as he commanded me, and the breath came into them, and they lived and stood on their feet, an exceedingly great army.

469. Unafraid (Ezekiel 39:26)

They shall forget their shame and all the treachery they have practiced against me, when they dwell securely in their land with none to make them afraid.

470. God dwells in our midst forever (Ezekiel 43:7)

He said to me, "Son of man, this is the place of my throne and the place of the soles of my feet, where I will dwell in the midst of the people of Israel forever. And the house of Israel shall no more defile my holy name, neither they, nor their kings, by their whoring and by the dead bodies of their kings at their high places."

471. Ministers (Ezekiel 44:15)

But the Levitical priests, the sons of Zadok, who kept the charge of my sanctuary when the people of Israel went astray from me, shall come near to me to minister to me. And they shall stand before me to offer me the fat and the blood, declares the Lord God.

472. Water from sanctuary (Ezekiel 47:12)

And on the banks, on both sides of the river, there will grow all kinds of trees for food. Their leaves will not wither, nor their fruit fail, but they will bear fresh fruit every month, because the water for them flows from the sanctuary. Their fruit will be for food, and their leaves for healing.

473. Everything belongs to God (Daniel 2:20-21)

Blessed be the name of God forever and ever, to whom belong wisdom and might. He changes times and seasons; he removes kings and sets up kings; he gives wisdom to the wise and knowledge to those who have understanding.

474. Set up a kingdom (Daniel 2:44)

And in the days of those kings the God of heaven will set up a kingdom that shall never be destroyed, nor shall the kingdom be left to another people. It shall break in pieces all these kingdoms and bring them to an end, and it shall stand forever.

475. Deliverance (Daniel 3:17-18)

If this be so, our God whom we serve is able to deliver us from the burning fiery furnace, and he will deliver us out of your hand, O king. But if not, be it known to you, O king, that we will not serve your gods or worship the golden image that you have set up.

476. His miracles are great (Daniel 4:2-3)

It has seemed good to me to show the signs and wonders that the Most High God has done for me. How great are his signs, how mighty his wonders! His kingdom is an everlasting kingdom, and his dominion endures from generation to generation.

477. God is sovereign (Daniel 4:17, 25, 32, 35)

The Most High rules the kingdom of men and gives it to whom he will and sets over it the lowliest of men.

478. Shut the lion's mouths (Daniel 6:22)

My God sent his angel and shut the lions' mouths, and they have not harmed me, because I was found blameless before him; and also before you, O king, I have done no harm.

479. Seventy weeks (Daniel 9:24)

Seventy weeks are decreed about your people and your holy city, to finish the transgression, to put an end to sin, and to atone for iniquity, to bring in everlasting righteousness, to seal both vision and prophet, and to anoint a most holy place.

480. Shine like a star (Daniel 12:3)

And those who are wise shall shine like the brightness of the sky above; and those who turn many to righteousness, like the stars forever and ever.

481. Pure white (Daniel 12:10)

Many shall purify themselves and make themselves white and be refined, but the wicked shall act wickedly. And none of the wicked shall understand, but those who are wise shall understand.

482. Rest (Daniel 12:13)

But go your way till the end. And you shall rest and shall stand in your allotted place at the end of the days.

5. Minor Prophets

483. Children of God (Hosea 1:10)

Yet the number of the children of Israel shall be like the sand of the sea, which cannot be measured or numbered. And in the place where it was said to them, "You are not my people," it shall be said to them, "Children of the living God."

484. Betroth in faithfulness (Hosea 2:19-20)

And I will betroth you to me forever. I will betroth you to me in righteousness and in justice, in steadfast love and in mercy. I will betroth you to me in faithfulness. And you shall know the Lord.

485. I will answer (Hosea 2:21)

And in that day I will answer, declares the Lord, I will answer the heavens, and they shall answer the earth,

486. Live before Him (Hosea 6:1-2)

Come, let us return to the Lord; for he has torn us, that he may heal us; he has struck us down, and he will bind us up. After two days he will revive us; on the third day he will raise us up, that we may live before him.

487. Not give you up (Hosea 11:8)

How can I give you up, O Ephraim? How can I hand you over, O Israel? How can I make you like Admah? How can I treat you like Zeboiim? My heart recoils within me; my compassion grows warm and tender.

488. Anger has turned (Hosea 14:4-5)

I will heal their apostasy; I will love them freely, for my anger has turned from them. I will be like the dew to Israel; he shall blossom like the lily; he shall take root like the trees of Lebanon.

489. Upright (Hosea 14:9)

Whoever is wise, let him understand these things; whoever is discerning, let him know them; for the ways of the Lord are right, and the upright walk in them, but transgressors stumble in them.

490. Abundant love (Joel 2:13)

Return to the Lord your God, for he is gracious and merciful, slow to anger, and abounding in steadfast love; and he relents over disaster.

491. Restoration (Joel 2:25)

I will restore to you the years that the swarming locust has eaten, the hopper, the destroyer, and the cutter, my great army, which I sent among you.

492. Pour out the Holy Spirit (Joel 2:28-29)

And it shall come to pass afterward, that I will pour out my Spirit on all flesh; your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, your old men shall dream dreams, and your young men shall see visions. Even on the male and female servants in those days I will pour out my Spirit.

493. Salvation (Joel 2:32)

And it shall come to pass that everyone who calls on the name of the Lord shall be saved. For in Mount Zion and in Jerusalem there shall be those who escape, as the Lord has said, and among the survivors shall be those whom the Lord calls.

494. Refuge (Joel 3:16)

The Lord roars from Zion, and utters his voice from Jerusalem, and the heavens and the earth quake. But the Lord is a refuge to his people, a stronghold to the people of Israel.

495. Prepare to meet God (Amos 4:12-13)

Therefore thus I will do to you, O Israel; because I will do this to you, prepare to meet your God, O Israel! For behold, he who forms the mountains and creates the wind, and declares to man what is his thought, who makes the morning darkness, and treads on the heights of the earth— the Lord, the God of hosts, is his name!

496. Grace to the remnant (Amos 5:14-15)

Seek good, and not evil, that you may live; and so the Lord, the God of hosts, will be with you, as you have said. Hate evil, and love good, and establish justice in the gate; it may be that the Lord, the God of hosts, will be gracious to the remnant of Joseph.

497. Returned from captivity (Amos 9:14)

I will restore the fortunes of my people Israel, and they shall rebuild the ruined cities and inhabit them; they shall plant vineyards and drink their wine, and they shall make gardens and eat their fruit.

498. The kingdom is God's (Obadiah 17, 21)

But in Mount Zion there shall be those who escape, and it shall be holy, and the house of Jacob shall possess their own possessions... Saviors shall go up to Mount Zion to rule Mount Esau, and the kingdom shall be the Lord's.

499. Prayer reaches God (Jonah 2:7, 10)

When my life was fainting away, I remembered the Lord, and my prayer came to you, into your holy temple.

500. Relented disaster (Jonah 3:10)

When God saw what they did, how they turned from their evil way, God relented of the disaster that he had said he would do to them, and he did not do it.

501. God's words do good (Micah 2:7)

Do not my words do good to him who walks uprightly?

502. Opens breach (Micah 2:13)

He who opens the breach goes up before them; they break through and pass the gate, going out by it. Their king passes on before them, the Lord at their head.

503. Filled with power (Micah 3:8)

But as for me, I am filled with power, with the Spirit of the Lord, and with justice and might, to declare to Jacob his transgression and to Israel his sin.

504. Walk with God (Micah 6:8)

He has told you, O man, what is good; and what does the Lord require of you but to do justice, and to love kindness, and to walk humbly with your God?

505. God will hear me (Micah 7:7)

But as for me, I will look to the Lord; I will wait for the God of my salvation; my God will hear me.

506. Cast our sins into the depths of the sea (Micah 7:18-19)

Who is a God like you, pardoning iniquity and passing over transgression for the remnant of his inheritance? He does not retain his anger forever, because he delights in steadfast love. He will again have compassion on us; he will tread our iniquities underfoot. You will cast all our sins into the depths of the sea.

507. Stronghold (Nahum 1:7)

The Lord is good, a stronghold in the day of trouble; he knows those who take refuge in him.

508. Live by faith (Habakkuk 2:3-4)

For still the vision awaits its appointed time; it hastens to the end—it will not lie. If it seems slow, wait for it; it will surely come; it will not delay. "Behold, his soul is puffed up; it is not upright within him, but the righteous shall live by his faith."

509. Rejoice in the Lord (Habakkuk 3:18-19; Isaiah 58:14)

I will rejoice in the Lord; I will take joy in the God of my salvation. God, the Lord, is my strength; he makes my feet like the deer's; he makes me tread on my high places.

510. Hidden (Zephaniah 2:3)

Seek the Lord, all you humble of the land, who do his just commands; seek righteousness; seek humility; perhaps you may be hidden on the day of the anger of the Lord.

511. Quiet you by His love (Zephaniah 3:17)

The Lord your God is in your midst, a mighty one who will save; he will rejoice over you with gladness; he will quiet you by his love; he will exult over you with loud singing.

512. Shake all nations (Haggai 2:7)

And I will shake all nations, so that the treasures of all nations shall come in, and I will fill this house with glory, says the Lord of hosts.

513. Wall of fire (Zechariah 2:5)

And I will be to her a wall of fire all around, declares the Lord, and I will be the glory in her midst.

514. Dwell in God's midst (Zachariah 2:11)

And many nations shall join themselves to the Lord in that day, and shall be my people. And I will dwell in your midst, and you shall know that the Lord of hosts has sent me to you.

515. Rule the house of God (Zachariah 3:7)

If you will walk in my ways and keep my charge, then you shall rule my house and have charge of my courts, and I will give you the right of access among those who are standing here.

516. By God's Spirit (Zachariah 4:6)

Not by might, nor by power, but by my Spirit, says the Lord of hosts.

517. Seek God's favor (Zachariah 8:22)

Many peoples and strong nations shall come to seek the Lord of hosts in Jerusalem and to entreat the favor of the Lord.

518. Return and live (Zachariah 10:9)

Though I scattered them among the nations, yet in far countries they shall remember me, and with their children they shall live and return.

519. Look to God (Zachariah 12:10)

And I will pour out on the house of David and the inhabitants of Jerusalem a spirit of grace and pleas for mercy, so that, when they look on me, on him whom they have pierced, they shall mourn for him, as one mourns for an only child, and weep bitterly over him, as one weeps over a firstborn.

520. Cleanse from sin (Zachariah 13:1)

On that day there shall be a fountain opened for the house of David and the inhabitants of Jerusalem, to cleanse them from sin and uncleanness.

521. God will be King (Zachariah 14:9)

And the Lord will be king over all the earth. On that day the Lord will be one and his name one.

522. He will purify (Malachi 3:2-3)

But who can endure the day of his coming, and who can stand when he appears? For he is like a refiner's fire and like fullers' soap. He will sit as a refiner and purifier of silver, and he will purify the sons of Levi and refine them like gold and silver, and they will bring offerings in righteousness to the Lord.

523. God does not change (Malachi 3:6)

For I the Lord do not change; therefore you, O children of Jacob, are not consumed.

524. Blessing from heaven (Malachi 3:10)

Bring the full tithe into the storehouse, that there may be food in my house. And thereby put me to the test, says the Lord of hosts, if I will not open the windows of heaven for you and pour down for you a blessing until there is no more need.

525. Land of delight (Malachi 3:12)

Then all nations will call you blessed, for you will be a land of delight, says the Lord of hosts.

526. Fear the Lord (Malachi 3:16)

Then those who feared the Lord spoke with one another. The Lord paid attention and heard them, and a book of remembrance was written before him of those who feared the Lord and esteemed his name.

527. Distinction between righteous and wicked (Malachi 3:17-18)

They shall be mine, says the Lord of hosts, in the day when I make up my treasured possession, and I will spare them as a man spares his son who serves him. Then once more you shall see the distinction between the righteous and the wicked, between one who serves God and one who does not serve him.

528. The power of healing (Malachi 4:2)

But for you who fear my name, the sun of righteousness shall rise with healing in its wings. You shall go out leaping like calves from the stall.

529. Tread down the wicked (Malachi 4:3)

And you shall tread down the wicked, for they will be ashes under the soles of your feet, on the day when I act, says the Lord of hosts.

530. Before the Lord comes (Malachi 4:5-6)

Behold, I will send you Elijah the prophet before the great and awesome day of the Lord comes. And he will turn the hearts of fathers to their children and the hearts of children to their fathers, lest I come and strike the land with a decree of utter destruction.

1. In the Gospel Books

1. His name is Jesus (Matthew 1:21)

She will bear a son, and you shall call his name Jesus, for he will save his people from their sins.

2. God with us (Matthew 1:23)

"Behold, the virgin shall conceive and bear a son, and they shall call his name Immanuel" (which means, God with us).

3. Baptize with the Spirit (Matthew 3:11)

I baptize you with water for repentance, but he who is coming after me is mightier than I, whose sandals I am not worthy to carry. He will baptize you with the Holy Spirit and fire.

4. Live by God's Word (Matthew 4:4)

Man shall not live by bread alone, but by every word that comes from the mouth of God.

5. See the great light (Matthew 4:16)

The people dwelling in darkness have seen a great light, and for those dwelling in the region and shadow of death, on them a light has dawned.

6. Blessed are the poor in spirit (Matthew 5:3)

Blessed are the poor in spirit, for theirs is the kingdom of heaven.

7. Blessed are those who mourn (Matthew 5:4)

Blessed are those who mourn, for they shall be comforted.

8. Blessed are the meek (Matthew 5:5)

Blessed are the meek, for they shall inherit the earth.

9. Blessed are those who hunger for righteousness (Matthew 5:6)

Blessed are those who hunger and thirst for righteousness, for they shall be satisfied.

10. Blessed are the merciful (Matthew 5:7)

Blessed are the merciful, for they shall receive mercy.

11. Blessed are the pure in heart (Matthew 5:8)

Blessed are the pure in heart, for they shall see God.

12. Blessed are the peacemakers (Matthew 5:9)

Blessed are the peacemakers, for they shall be called sons of God.

13. Blessed are those who are persecuted (Matthew 5:10)

Blessed are those who are persecuted for righteousness' sake, for theirs is the kingdom of heaven.

14. Blessed are you when persecuted (Matthew 5:11-12)

Blessed are you when others revile you and persecute you and utter all kinds of evil against you falsely on my account. Rejoice and be glad, for your reward is great in heaven, for so they persecuted the prophets who were before you.

15. Great in the kingdom of heaven (Matthew 5:19)

Therefore whoever relaxes one of the least of these commandments and teaches others to do the same will be called least in the kingdom of heaven, but whoever does them and teaches them will be called great in the kingdom of heaven.

16. Sons of God (Matthew 5:44-45)

But I say to you, Love your enemies and pray for those who persecute you, so that you may be sons of your Father who is in heaven. For he makes his sun rise on the evil and on the good, and sends rain on the just and on the unjust.

17. Reward (Matthew 6:4, 18)

So that your giving may be in secret. And your Father who sees in secret will reward you.

18. Lay up treasures in heaven (Matthew 6:20-21)

But lay up for yourselves treasures in heaven, where neither moth nor rust destroys and where thieves do not break in and steal. For where your treasure is, there your heart will be also.

19. God feeds them (Matthew 6:26)

Look at the birds of the air: they neither sow nor reap nor gather into barns, and yet your heavenly Father feeds them. Are you not of more value than they?

20. Added to you (Matthew 6:33)

But seek first the kingdom of God and his righteousness, and all these things will be added to you.

21. Ask, seek, and knock (Matthew 7:7)

Ask, and it will be given to you; seek, and you will find; knock, and it will be opened to you.

22. House on a rock (Matthew 7:24-25)

Everyone then who hears these words of mine and does them will be like a wise man who built his house on the rock. And the rain fell, and the floods came, and the winds blew and beat on that house, but it did not fall, because it had been founded on the rock.

23. Healed by faith (Matthew 8:13)

And to the centurion Jesus said, "Go; let it be done for you as you have believed." And the servant was healed at that very moment.

24. Bore our diseases (Matthew 8:17)

This was to fulfill what was spoken by the prophet Isaiah: "He took our illnesses and bore our diseases."

25. Healed by faith (Matthew 9:29)

Then he touched their eyes, saying, "According to your faith be it done to you."

26. God speaks through us (Matthew 10:19-20)

When they deliver you over, do not be anxious how you are to speak or what you are to say, for what you are to say will be given to you in that hour. For it is not you who speak, but the Spirit of your Father speaking through you.

27. Our hairs are numbered (Matthew 10:29-31)

Are not two sparrows sold for a penny? And not one of them will fall to the ground apart from your Father. But even the hairs of your head are all numbered. Fear not, therefore; you are of more value than many sparrows.

28. Reward (Matthew 10:42)

And whoever gives one of these little ones even a cup of cold water because he is a disciple, truly, I say to you, he will by no means lose his reward.

29. Work hard (Matthew 11:12)

From the time of John the Baptist to the present day, the kingdom of heaven has been entered by effort, and those who work hard will receive it.

30. Rest (Matthew 11:28-29)

Come to me, all who labor and are heavy laden, and I will give you rest. Take my yoke upon you, and learn from me, for I am gentle and lowly in heart, and you will find rest for your souls.

31. The kingdom of God has come (Matthew 12:28)

But if it is by the Spirit of God that I cast out demons, then the kingdom of God has come upon you.

32. Brother and sister and mother (Matthew 12:50)

For whoever does the will of my Father in heaven is my brother and sister and mother.

33. Shine like the sun (Matthew 13:43)

Then the righteous will shine like the sun in the kingdom of their Father. He who has ears, let him hear.

34. Rock (Matthew 16:18)

And I tell you, you are Peter, and on this rock I will build my church, and the gates of hell shall not prevail against it.

35. Lose his life (Matthew 16:25-26)

For whoever would save his life will lose it, but whoever loses his life for my sake will find it. For what will it profit a man if he gains the whole world and forfeits his soul? Or what shall a man give in return for his soul?

36. Faith can move mountains (Matthew 17:20)

He said to them, "Because of your little faith. For truly, I say to you, if you have faith like a grain of mustard seed, you will say to this mountain, 'Move from here to there,' and it will move, and nothing will be impossible for you."

37. Whatever you bind (Matthew 18:18-19)

Truly, I say to you, whatever you bind on earth shall be bound in heaven, and whatever you loose on earth shall be loosed in heaven. Again I say to you, if two of you agree on earth about anything they ask, it will be done for them by my Father in heaven.

38. The Lord is among us (Matthew 18:20)

For where two or three are gathered in my name, there am I among them.

39. Inherit eternal life (Matthew 19:29)

And everyone who has left houses or brothers or sisters or father or mother or children or lands, for my name's sake, will receive a hundredfold and will inherit eternal life.

40. Faith (Matthew 21:22)

And whatever you ask in prayer, you will receive, if you have faith.

41. Salvation (Matthew 24:12-13)

And because lawlessness will be increased, the love of many will grow cold. But the one who endures to the end will be saved.

42. God's Word will never pass away (Matthew 24:35)

Heaven and earth will pass away, but my words will not pass away.

43. Go to marriage feast (Matthew 25:10)

And while they were going to buy, the bridegroom came, and those who were ready went in with him to the marriage feast, and the door was shut.

44. Enjoy the joy of the Lord (Matthew 25:21)

His master said to him, "Well done, good and faithful servant. You have been faithful over a little; I will set you over much. Enter into the joy of your master."

45. Inherit the kingdom of God (Matthew 25:34)

Then the King will say to those on his right, "Come, you who are blessed by my Father, inherit the kingdom prepared for you from the foundation of the world."

46. Forgiveness of sins (Matthew 26:28)

For this is my blood of the covenant, which is poured out for many for the forgiveness of sins.

47. Make disciples of all nations (Matthew 28:18-19)

And Jesus came and said to them, "All authority in heaven and on earth has been given to me. Go therefore and make disciples of all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit."

48. Fishers of men (Mark 1:17)

And Jesus said to them, "Follow me, and I will make you become fishers of men."

49. He call to sinners (Mark 2:17)

And when Jesus heard it, he said to them, "Those who are well have no need of a physician, but those who are sick. I came not to call the righteous, but sinners."

50. Go in peace (Mark 5:34)

And he said to her, "Daughter, your faith has made you well; go in peace, and be healed of your disease."

51. Just touch the Lord (Mark 6:56)

And wherever he came, in villages, cities, or countryside, they laid the sick in the marketplaces and implored him that they might touch even the fringe of his garment. And as many as touched it were made well.

52. All things are possible (Mark 9:23)

And Jesus said to him, "'If you can'! All things are possible for one who believes."

53. God can do all things (Mark 10:27)

Jesus looked at them and said, "With man it is impossible, but not with God. For all things are possible with God."

54. Miracles (Mark 16:17)

And these signs will accompany those who believe: in my name they will cast out demons; they will speak in new tongues.

55. Nothing is impossible for God (Luke 1:37)

For nothing will be impossible with God.

56. The Lord is great (Luke 1:46-47)

And Mary said, "My soul magnifies the Lord, and my spirit rejoices in God my Savior."

57. Good news (Luke 2:10-11)

And the angel said to them, "Fear not, for behold, I bring you good news of great joy that will be for all the people. For unto you is born this day in the city of David a Savior, who is Christ the Lord."

58. Peace (Luke 2:14)

Glory to God in the highest, and on earth peace among those with whom he is pleased!

59. Year of the Lord's favor (Luke 4:18-19)

The Spirit of the Lord is upon me, because he has anointed me to proclaim good news to the poor. He has sent me to proclaim liberty to the captives and recovering of sight to the blind, to set at liberty those who are oppressed, to proclaim the year of the Lord's favor.

60. Heal all diseases (Luke 4:40)

Now when the sun was setting, all those who had any who were sick with various diseases brought them to him, and he laid his hands on every one of them and healed them.

61. Hear the Lord (Luke 10:16)

The one who hears you hears me, and the one who rejects you rejects me, and the one who rejects me rejects him who sent me.

62. Power over the enemy (Luke 10:19)

Behold, I have given you authority to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy, and nothing shall hurt you.

63. Good portion (Luke 10:42)

But one thing is necessary. Mary has chosen the good portion, which will not be taken away from her.

64. The Holy Spirit gives (Luke 11:13)

If you then, who are evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will the heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit to those who ask him!

65. Blessed are those who keep God's word (Luke 11:28)

But he said, "Blessed rather are those who hear the word of God and keep it!"

66. Blessed (Luke 14:14)

And you will be blessed, because they cannot repay you. For you will be repaid at the resurrection of the just.

67. Rejoicing in heaven (Luke 15:7)

Just so, I tell you, there will be more joy in heaven over one sinner who repents than over ninety-nine righteous persons who need no repentance.

68. Eternal dwelling (Luke 16:9)

And I tell you, make friends for yourselves by means of unrighteous wealth, so that when it fails they may receive you into the eternal dwellings.

69. The kingdom of God is in your midst (Luke 17:21)

Nor will they say, 'Look, here it is!' or 'There!' for behold, the kingdom of God is in the midst of you.

70. Justice (Luke 18:7-8)

And will not God give justice to his elect, who cry to him day and night? Will he delay long over them? I tell you, he will give justice to them speedily. Nevertheless, when the Son of Man comes, will he find faith on earth?

71. Save the lost (Luke 19:10)

For the Son of Man came to seek and to save the lost.

72. Faithfulness is rewarded (Luke 19:17)

And he said to him, "Well done, good servant! Because you have been faithful in a very little, you shall have authority over ten cities."

73. Stand before the Son of Man (Luke 21:36)

But stay awake at all times, praying that you may have strength to escape all these things that are going to take place, and to stand before the Son of Man.

74. Assigned the kingdom (Luke 22:28-29)

You are those who have stayed with me in my trials, and I assign to you, as my Father assigned to me, a kingdom.

75. Children of God (John 1:12)

But to all who did receive him, who believed in his name, he gave the right to become children of God.

76. Takes away the sin of the world (John 1:29)

The next day he saw Jesus coming toward him, and said, "Behold, the Lamb of God, who takes away the sin of the world!"

77. See heaven open (John 1:51)

And he said to him, "Truly, truly, I say to you, you will see heaven opened, and the angels of God ascending and descending on the Son of Man."

78. Born again (John 3:3, 5)

Jesus answered him, "Truly, truly, I say to you, unless one is born again he cannot see the kingdom of God... unless one is born of water and the Spirit, he cannot enter the kingdom of God."

79. Have eternal life (John 3:16)

For God so loved the world, that he gave his only Son, that whoever believes in him should not perish but have eternal life.

80. Never be thirsty again (John 4:13-14)

Jesus said to her, "Everyone who drinks of this water will be thirsty again, but whoever drinks of the water that I will give him will never be thirsty again. The water that I will give him will become in him a spring of water welling up to eternal life."

81. Passed from death to life (John 5:24)

Truly, truly, I say to you, whoever hears my word and believes him who sent me has eternal life. He does not come into judgment, but has passed from death to life.

82. Bread of life (John 6:35, 37)

Jesus said to them, "I am the bread of life; whoever comes to me shall not hunger, and whoever believes in me shall never thirst. All that the Father gives me will come to me, and whoever comes to me I will never cast out.

83. Live (John 6:51, 54)

I am the living bread that came down from heaven. If anyone eats of this bread, he will live forever. And the bread that I will give for the life of the world is my flesh. Whoever feeds on my flesh and drinks my blood has eternal life, and I will raise him up on the last day.

84. The Spirit gives life (John 6:63)

It is the Spirit who gives life; the flesh is no help at all. The words that I have spoken to you are spirit and life.

85. He will know (John 7:17)

If anyone's will is to do God's will, he will know whether the teaching is from God or whether I am speaking on my own authority.

86. Rivers of living water (John 7:37-39)

Jesus stood up and cried out, "If anyone thirsts, let him come to me and drink. Whoever believes in me, as the Scripture has said, 'Out of his heart will flow rivers of living water.'" Now this he said about the Spirit, whom those who believed in him were to receive, for as yet the Spirit had not been given, because Jesus was not yet glorified.

87. Light of Life (John 8:12)

Again Jesus spoke to them, saying, "I am the light of the world. Whoever follows me will not walk in darkness, but will have the light of life."

88. He will be free (John 8:32, 36)

You will know the reason, and the reason will set you free. Therefore, if the Son of the Father sets you free, you will be free.

89. Abundant life (John 10:10-11)

The thief comes only to steal and kill and destroy. I came that they may have life and have it abundantly. I am the good shepherd. The good shepherd lays down his life for the sheep.

90. Never perish (John 10:28)

I give them eternal life, and they will never perish, and no one will snatch them out of my hand.

91. Faith in God (John 11:40)

Jesus said to her, "Did I not tell you that if you believed you would see the glory of God?"

92. Bear fruit (John 12:24-26)

Truly, truly, I say to you, unless a grain of wheat falls into the earth and dies, it remains alone; but if it dies, it bears much fruit. Whoever loves his life loses it, and whoever hates his life in this world will keep it for eternal life. If anyone serves me, he must follow me; and where I am, there will my servant be also. If anyone serves me, the Father will honor him.

93. Draw all people (John 12:32)

And I, when I am lifted up from the earth, will draw all people to myself.

94. Blessed are you if you do them (John 13:17)

If you know these things, blessed are you if you do them.

95. Love one another (John 13:34-35)

A new commandment I give to you, that you love one another: just as I have loved you, you also are to love one another. By this all people will know that you are my disciples, if you have love for one another.

96. Prepare a place (John 14:1-3)

Let not your hearts be troubled. Believe in God; believe also in me. In my Father's house are many rooms. If it were not so, would I have told you that I go to prepare a place for you? And if I go and prepare a place for you, I will come again and will take you to myself, that where I am you may be also.

97. Do greater works (John 14:12)

Truly, truly, I say to you, whoever believes in me will also do the works that I do; and greater works than these will he do, because I am going to the Father.

98. The Lord will do (John 14:13-14)

Whatever you ask in my name, this I will do, that the Father may be glorified in the Son. If you ask me anything in my name, I will do it.

99. The Holy Spirit is with you (John 14:16-17)

And I will ask the Father, and he will give you another Helper, to be with you forever, even the Spirit of truth, whom the world cannot receive, because it neither sees him nor knows him. You know him, for he dwells with you and will be in you.

100. Manifest (John 14:21, 23)

Whoever has my commandments and keeps them, he it is who loves me. And he who loves me will be loved by my Father, and I will love him and manifest myself to him. If anyone loves me, he will keep my word, and my Father will love him, and we will come to him and make our home with him.

101. Teach us (John 14:26)

But the Helper, the Holy Spirit, whom the Father will send in my name, he will teach you all things and bring to your remembrance all that I have said to you.

102. Peace (John 14:27)

Peace I leave with you; my peace I give to you. Not as the world gives do I give to you. Let not your hearts be troubled, neither let them be afraid.

103. Bear fruit (John 15:5)

I am the vine; you are the branches. Whoever abides in me and I in him, he it is that bears much fruit, for apart from me you can do nothing.

104. Friend (John 15:14)

You are my friends if you do what I command you.

105. Convict the world (John 16:8)

And when he comes, he will convict the world concerning sin and righteousness and judgment.

106. Spirit of truth (John 16:13)

When the Spirit of truth comes, he will guide you into all the truth, for he will not speak on his own authority, but whatever he hears he will speak, and he will declare to you the things that are to come.

107. Peace in the Lord (John 16:33)

I have said these things to you, that in me you may have peace. In the world you will have tribulation. But take heart; I have overcome the world.

108. Eternal life (John 17:3)

And this is eternal life, that they know you, the only true God, and Jesus Christ whom you have sent.

109. Sanctification (John 17:17)

Sanctify them in the truth; your word is truth.

110. One (John 17:22-24)

The glory that you have given me I have given to them, that they may be one even as we are one, I in them and you in me, that they may become perfectly one, so that the world may know that you sent me and loved them even as you loved me. Father, I desire that they also, whom you have given me, may be with me where I am, to see my glory that you have given me because you loved me before the foundation of the world.

111. Believe without seeing (John 20:29)

Jesus said to him, "Have you believed because you have seen me? Blessed are those who have not seen and yet have believed."

112. Life (John 20:31)

But these are written so that you may believe that Jesus is the Christ, the Son of God, and that by believing you may have life in his name.

113. Feeding His sheep (John 21:15, 17)

When they had finished breakfast, Jesus said to Simon Peter, "Simon, son of John, do you love me more than these?" He said to him, "Yes, Lord; you know that I love you." He said to him, "Feed my lambs."

114. Baptism of the Holy Spirit (Acts 1:5, 8)

John baptized with water, but you will be baptized with the Holy Spirit not many days from now. But you will receive power when the Holy Spirit has come upon you, and you will be my witnesses in Jerusalem and in all Judea and Samaria, and to the end of the earth.

115. Filled with the Holy Spirit (Acts 2:4)

And they were all filled with the Holy Spirit and began to speak in other tongues as the Spirit gave them utterance.

116. Forgiveness of sins by the Spirit (Acts 2:38)

And Peter said to them, "Repent and be baptized every one of you in the name of Jesus Christ for the forgiveness of your sins, and you will receive the gift of the Holy Spirit."

117. The Lord's name is powerful (Acts 3:6)

But Peter said, "I have no silver and gold, but what I do have I give to you. In the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth, rise up and walk!"

118. Repent (Acts 3:19-20)

Repent therefore, and turn back, that your sins may be blotted out, that times of refreshing may come from the presence of the Lord, and that he may send the Christ appointed for you, Jesus.

119. Salvation by the Lord (Acts 4:12)

And there is salvation in no one else, for there is no other name under heaven given among men by which we must be saved.

120. Boldly preaching (Acts 4:31)

And when they had prayed, the place in which they were gathered together was shaken, and they were all filled with the Holy Spirit and continued to speak the word of God with boldness.

121. See the glory of God (Acts 7:55)

But he, full of the Holy Spirit, gazed into heaven and saw the glory of God, and Jesus standing at the right hand of God.

122. The Holy Spirit descends (Acts 10:44, 46)

While Peter was still saying these things, the Holy Spirit fell on all who heard the word. For they were hearing them speaking in tongues and extolling God.

123. Set apart (Acts 13:2)

While they were worshiping the Lord and fasting, the Holy Spirit said, "Set apart for me Barnabas and Saul for the work to which I have called them."

124. The whole family is saved (Acts 16:25, 31)

And they said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus, and you will be saved, you and your household."

125. Keep preaching (Acts 18:9-10)

And the Lord said to Paul one night in a vision, "Do not be afraid, but go on speaking and do not be silent, for I am with you, and no one will attack you to harm you, for I have many in this city who are my people."

126. God's Word (Acts 20:32)

Now I surrender you to God and to His gracious Word. This is the Word that builds you up and causes you to have an inheritance with all who are sanctified.

127. It is more blessed to give (Acts 20:35)

In all things I have shown you that by working hard in this way we must help the weak and remember the words of the Lord Jesus, how he himself said, "It is more blessed to give than to receive."

128. Turn to the light (Acts 26:18)

...to open their eyes, so that they may turn from darkness to light and from the power of Satan to God, that they may receive forgiveness of sins and a place among those who are sanctified by faith in me.

129. Exactly as I have been told (Acts 27:25)

So take heart, men, for I have faith in God that it will be exactly as I have been told.

130. Without hindrance (Acts 28:31)

...proclaiming the kingdom of God and teaching about the Lord Jesus Christ with all boldness and without hindrance.

3. In Paul's Epistles

131. Promised (Romans 1:2-5)

...which he promised beforehand through his prophets in the holy Scriptures, concerning his Son, who was descended from David according to the flesh and was declared to be the Son of God in power according to the Spirit of holiness by his resurrection from the dead, Jesus Christ our Lord, through whom we have received grace and apostleship to bring about the obedience of faith for the sake of his name among all the nations.

132. Coming to you (Romans 1:10)

...always in my prayers, asking that somehow by God's will I may now at last succeed in coming to you.

133. The power of the gospel (Romans 1:16)

For I am not ashamed of the gospel, for it is the power of God for salvation to everyone who believes, to the Jew first and also to the Greek.

134. Eternal life (Romans 2:7)

To those who by patience in well-doing seek for glory and honor and immortality, he will give eternal life.

135. All have sinned (Romans 3:23)

For all have sinned and fall short of the glory of God.

136. Heir of the world (Romans 4:13)

For the promise to Abraham and his offspring that he would be heir of the world did not come through the law but through the righteousness of faith.

137. Father of many nations (Romans 4:17)

As it is written, "I have made you the father of many nations"—in the presence of the God in whom he believed, who gives life to the dead and calls into existence the things that do not exist.

138. Justification (Romans 4:25)

...who was delivered up for our trespasses and raised for our justification.

139. Stand in the grace (Romans 5:2)

Through him we have also obtained access by faith into this grace in which we stand, and we rejoice in hope of the glory of God.

140. God's love is poured into our hearts (Romans 5:3-5)

Not only that, but we rejoice in our sufferings, knowing that suffering produces endurance, and endurance produces character, and character produces hope, and hope does not put us to shame, because God's love has been poured into our hearts through the Holy Spirit who has been given to us.

141. Rejoice in God (Romans 5:11)

More than that, we also rejoice in God through our Lord Jesus Christ, through whom we have now received reconciliation.

142. Life reigns (Romans 5:17)

For if, because of one man's trespass, death reigned through that one man, much more will those who receive the abundance of grace and the free gift of righteousness reign in life through the one man Jesus Christ.

143. Righteousness (Romans 5:18-19)

Therefore, as one trespass led to condemnation for all men, so one act of righteousness leads to justification and life for all men. For as by the one man's disobedience the many were made sinners, so by the one man's obedience the many will be made righteous.

144. The body of sin died (Romans 6:6-8)

We know that our old self was crucified with him in order that the body of sin might be brought to nothing, so that we would no longer be enslaved to sin. For one who has died has been set free from sin. Now if we have died with Christ, we believe that we will also live with him.

145. Present yourself to God (Romans 6:13-14)

Do not present your members to sin as instruments for unrighteousness, but present yourselves to God as those who have been brought from death to life, and your members to God as instruments for righteousness. For sin will have no dominion over you, since you are not under law but under grace.

146. Be a righteous slave (Romans 6:22)

But now that you have been set free from sin and have become slaves of God, the fruit you get leads to sanctification and its end, eternal life.

147. Gift of eternal life (Romans 6:23)

For the wages of sin is death, but the free gift of God is eternal life in Christ Jesus our Lord.

148. Belong to Christ (Romans 7:4)

Likewise, my brothers, you also have died to the law through the body of Christ, so that you may belong to another, to him who has been raised from the dead, in order that we may bear fruit for God.

149. Way of the Spirit (Romans 7:6)

But now we are released from the law, having died to that which held us captive, so that we serve in the new way of the Spirit and not in the old way of the written code.

150. Deliverance by God (Romans 7:24-25)

Wretched man that I am! Who will deliver me from this body of death? Thanks be to God through Jesus Christ our Lord! So then, I myself serve the law of God with my mind, but with my flesh I serve the law of sin.

151. No condemnation (Romans 8:1)

There is therefore now no condemnation for those who are in Christ Jesus.

152. The law of the Spirit (Romans 8:2)

For the law of the Spirit of life has set you free in Christ Jesus from the law of sin and death.

153. Requirement of the law (Romans 8:4)

...in order that the righteous requirement of the law might be fulfilled in us, who walk not according to the flesh but according to the Spirit.

154. Life and peace (Romans 8:5-6)

For those who live according to the flesh set their minds on the things of the flesh, but those who live according to the Spirit set their minds on the things of the Spirit. For to set the mind on the flesh is death, but to set the mind on the Spirit is life and peace.

155. Belong to Christ (Romans 8:9)

You, however, are not in the flesh but in the Spirit, if in fact the Spirit of God dwells in you. Anyone who does not have the Spirit of Christ does not belong to him.

156. The body lives again (Romans 8:11)

If the Spirit of him who raised Jesus from the dead dwells in you, he who raised Christ Jesus from the dead will also give life to your mortal bodies through his Spirit who dwells in you.

157. Death of evil deeds (Romans 8:12-13)

So then, brothers, we are debtors, not to the flesh, to live according to the flesh. For if you live according to the flesh you will die, but if by the Spirit you put to death the deeds of the body, you will live.

158. Sons of God (Romans 8:14-15)

For all who are led by the Spirit of God are sons of God. For you did not receive the spirit of slavery to fall back into fear, but you have received the Spirit of adoption as sons, by whom we cry, "Abba! Father!"

159. Heirs of God (Romans 8:16-17)

The Spirit himself bears witness with our spirit that we are children of God, and if children, then heirs—heirs of God and fellow heirs with Christ, provided we suffer with him in order that we may also be glorified with him.

160. Redemption of our bodies (Romans 8:23-25)

And not only the creation, but we ourselves, who have the firstfruits of the Spirit, groan inwardly as we wait eagerly for adoption as sons, the redemption of our bodies. For in this hope we were saved. Now hope that is seen is not hope. For who hopes for what he sees? But if we hope for what we do not see, we wait for it with patience.

161. The Spirit intercedes (Romans 8:26-27)

Likewise the Spirit helps us in our weakness. For we do not know what to pray for as we ought, but the Spirit himself intercedes for us with groanings too deep for words. And he who searches hearts knows what is the mind of the Spirit, because the Spirit intercedes for the saints according to the will of God.

162. All things work together for good (Romans 8:28)

And we know that for those who love God all things work together for good, for those who are called according to his purpose.

163. Conformed to the image of God's Son (Romans 8:29-30)

For those whom he foreknew he also predestined to be conformed to the image of his Son, in order that he might be the firstborn among many brothers. And those whom he predestined he also called, and those whom he called he also justified, and those whom he justified he also glorified.

164. Who can be against us? (Romans 8:31)

What then shall we say to these things? If God is for us, who can be against us?

165. Graciously gives us (Romans 8:32)

He who did not spare his own Son but gave him up for us all, how will he not also with him graciously give us all things?

166. Who can condemn? (Romans 8:33-34)

Who shall bring any charge against God's elect? It is God who justifies. Who is to condemn? Christ Jesus is the one who died—more than that, who was raised—who is at the right hand of God, who indeed is interceding for us.

167. More than conquerors (Romans 8:35-37)

Who shall separate us from the love of Christ? Shall tribulation, or distress, or persecution, or famine, or nakedness, or danger, or sword? As it is written, "For your sake we are being killed all the day long; we are regarded as sheep to be slaughtered." No, in all these things we are more than conquerors through him who loved us.

168. Nothing can separate us from God's love (Romans 8:38-39)

For I am sure that neither death nor life, nor angels nor rulers, nor things present nor things to come, nor powers, nor height nor depth, nor anything else in all creation, will be able to separate us from the love of God in Christ Jesus our Lord.

169. Depends on God (Romans 9:16, 18)

So then it depends not on human will or exertion, but on God, who has mercy.

170. Riches of His glory (Romans 9:23-24)

...in order to make known the riches of his glory for vessels of mercy, which he has prepared beforehand for glory—even us whom he has called, not from the Jews only but also from the Gentiles.

171. Righteousness (Romans 10:4)

For Christ is the end of the law for righteousness to everyone who believes.

172. He will be saved (Romans 10:9)

If you confess with your mouth that Jesus is Lord and believe in your heart that God raised him from the dead, you will be saved.

173. Irrevocable (Romans 11:29)

For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable.

174. Living sacrifice (Romans 12:1)

I appeal to you therefore, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your bodies as a living sacrifice, holy and acceptable to God, which is your spiritual worship.

175. One body in Christ (Romans 12:5)

We are one body in Christ, and individually members one of another.

176. The Lord will avenge (Romans 12:19)

Beloved, never avenge yourselves, but leave it to the wrath of God, for it is written, "Vengeance is mine, I will repay, says the Lord."

177. Love fulfills the law (Romans 13:10)

Love does no wrong to a neighbor; therefore love is the fulfilling of the law.

178. The day is approaching (Romans 13:11-12)

Besides this you know the time, that the hour has come for you to wake from sleep. For salvation is nearer to us now than when we first believed. The night is far gone; the day is at hand. So then let us cast off the works of darkness and put on the armor of light.

179. Living for the Lord (Romans 14:7-8)

For none of us lives to himself, and none of us dies to himself. For if we live, we live to the Lord, and if we die, we die to the Lord. So then, whether we live or whether we die, we are the Lord's.

180. Spiritual joy (Romans 14:17)

For the kingdom of God is not a matter of eating and drinking but of righteousness and peace and joy in the Holy Spirit.

```
181. Hope (Romans 15:4)
```

For whatever was written in former days was written for our instruction, that through endurance and through the encouragement of the Scriptures we might have hope.

182. Full of joy (Romans 15:13)

May the God of hope fill you with all joy and peace in believing, so that by the power of the Holy Spirit you may abound in hope.

183. Minister of Christ (Romans 15:16)

Be a minister of Christ Jesus to the Gentiles in the priestly service of the gospel of God, so that the offering of the Gentiles may be acceptable, sanctified by the Holy Spirit.

184. Obedience (Romans 15:18)

For I will not venture to speak of anything except what Christ has accomplished through me to bring the Gentiles to obedience—by word and deed.

185. Crush Satan (Romans 16:20)

The God of peace will soon crush Satan under your feet. The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with you.

186. Sustain you to the end (1 Corinthians 1:8)

God will sustain you to the end, guiltless in the day of our Lord Jesus Christ.

187. Fellowship (1 Corinthians 1:9)

God is faithful, by whom you were called into the fellowship of his Son, Jesus Christ our Lord.

188. The power of the cross (1 Corinthians 1:18)

For the word of the cross is folly to those who are perishing, but to us who are being saved it is the power of God.

189. God chose (1 Corinthians 1:27)

But God chose what is foolish in the world to shame the wise; God chose what is weak in the world to shame the strong.

190. Righteousness, sanctification, and redemption (1 Corinthians 1:30)

And because of him you are in Christ Jesus, who became to us wisdom from God, righteousness and sanctification and redemption.

191. Power of God (1 Corinthians 2:4-5)

My speech and my message were not in plausible words of wisdom, but in demonstration of the Spirit and of power, so that your faith might not rest in the wisdom of men but in the power of God.

192. Preparation (1 Corinthians 2:9-10)

But, as it is written, "What no eye has seen, nor ear heard, nor the heart of man imagined, what God has prepared for those who love him"—these things God has revealed to us through the Spirit. For the Spirit searches everything, even the depths of God.

193. Judges all things (1 Corinthians 2:15-16)

The spiritual person judges all things, but is himself to be judged by no one. For who has understood the mind of the Lord so as to instruct him? But we have the mind of Christ.

194. God's field (1 Corinthians 3:9)

For we are God's fellow workers. You are God's field, God's building.

195. Reward (1 Corinthians 3:14)

If the work that anyone has built on the foundation survives, he will receive a reward.

196. Temple of God (1 Corinthians 3:16-17)

Do you not know that you are God's temple and that God's Spirit dwells in you? If anyone destroys God's temple, God will destroy him. For God's temple is holy, and you are that temple.

197. All things are yours (1 Corinthians 3:21-23)

So let no one boast in men. For all things are yours, whether Paul or Apollos or Cephas or the world or life or death or the present or the future—all are yours, and you are Christ's, and Christ is God's.

198. Wait for the Lord (1 Corinthians 4:5)

Therefore do not pronounce judgment before the time, before the Lord comes, who will bring to light the things now hidden in darkness and will disclose the purposes of the heart. Then each one will receive his commendation from God.

199. The kingdom of God has power (1 Corinthians 4:20)

For the kingdom of God does not consist in talk but in power.

200. Power of Jesus (1 Corinthians 5:4-5)

When you are assembled in the name of the Lord Jesus and my spirit is present, with the power of our Lord Jesus, you are to deliver this man to Satan for the destruction of the flesh, so that his spirit may be saved in the day of the Lord.

201. Judge the world (1 Corinthians 6:2)

Or do you not know that the saints will judge the world? And if the world is to be judged by you, are you incompetent to try trivial cases?

202. Sanctification (1 Corinthians 6:11)

And such were some of you. But you were washed, you were sanctified, you were justified in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ and by the Spirit of our God.

203. Members of Christ (1 Corinthians 6:15)

Do you not know that your bodies are members of Christ? Shall I then take the members of Christ and make them members of a prostitute? Never!

204. United into one Spirit (1 Corinthians 6:17)

But he who is joined to the Lord becomes one spirit with him.

205. Temple of the Holy Spirit (1 Corinthians 6:19-20)

Or do you not know that your body is a temple of the Holy Spirit within you, whom you have from God? You are not your own, for you were bought with a price. So glorify God in your body.

206. Bondservant of Christ (1 Corinthians 7:22)

For he who was called in the Lord as a bondservant is a freedman of the Lord. Likewise he who was free when called is a bondservant of Christ.

207. Spirit of God (1 Corinthians 7:40)

Yet in my judgment she is happier if she remains as she is. And I think that I too have the Spirit of God.

208. Known by God (1 Corinthians 8:3)

But if anyone loves God, he is known by God.

209. Living by the gospel (1 Corinthians 9:14)

In the same way, the Lord commanded that those who proclaim the gospel should get their living by the gospel.

210. Stewardship (1 Corinthians 9:16-17)

For if I preach the gospel, that gives me no ground for boasting. For necessity is laid upon me. Woe to me if I do not preach the gospel! For if I do this of my own will, I have a reward, but if not of my own will, I am still entrusted with a stewardship.

211. Imperishable crown (1 Corinthians 9:25, 27)

Every athlete exercises self-control in all things. They do it to receive a perishable crown, but we an imperishable. But I discipline my body and keep it under control, lest after preaching to others I myself should be disqualified.

212. Endurance (1 Corinthians 10:13)

No temptation has overtaken you that is not common to man. God is faithful, and he will not let you be tempted beyond your ability, but with the temptation he will also provide the way of escape, that you may be able to endure it.

213. One body in Christ (1 Corinthians 10:16-17)

The cup of blessing that we bless, is it not a participation in the blood of Christ? The bread that we break, is it not a participation in the body of Christ? Because there is one bread, we who are many are one body, for we all partake of the one bread.

214. New covenant of blood (1 Corinthians 11:25)

In the same way also he took the cup, after supper, saying, "This cup is the new covenant in my blood. Do this, as often as you drink it, in remembrance of me."

215. Spiritual gifts (1 Corinthians 12:7, 11)

To each is given the manifestation of the Spirit for the common good. All these are empowered by one and the same Spirit, who apportions to each one individually as he wills.

216. Become one body (1 Corinthians 12:13, 27)

For in one Spirit we were all baptized into one body—Jews or Greeks, slaves or free—and all were made to drink of one Spirit. Now you are the body of Christ and individually members of it.

217. Greater gifts (1 Corinthians 12:31; 13:8)

But earnestly desire the higher gifts. And I will show you a still more excellent way: love.

218. See face-to-face (1 Corinthians 13:12)

For now we see in a mirror dimly, but then face to face. Now I know in part; then I shall know fully, even as I have been fully known.

219. Build up the church (1 Corinthians 14:4, 12)

The one who speaks in a tongue builds up himself, but the one who prophesies builds up the church. So with yourselves, since you are eager for manifestations of the Spirit, strive to excel in building up the church.

220. All may prophesy (1 Corinthians 14:31)

For you can all prophesy one by one, so that all may learn and all be encouraged.

221. Saved by the gosel (1 Corinthians 15:1-4)

Now I would remind you of the gospel I preached to you, which you received, in which you stand, and by which you are being saved, if you hold fast to the word I preached to you unless you believed in vain. For I delivered to you as of first importance what I also received: that Christ died for our sins in accordance with the Scriptures, that he was buried, that he was raised on the third day in accordance with the Scriptures.

222. Resurrection by order (1 Corinthians 15:23)

But each is resurrected in his own order: Christ the firstfruits, then at his coming those who belong to Christ.

223. Resurrected body (1 Corinthians 15:42-44)

So is it with the resurrection of the dead. What is sown is perishable; what is raised is imperishable. It is sown in dishonor; it is raised in glory. It is sown in weakness; it is raised in power. It is sown a natural body; it is raised a spiritual body. If there is a natural body, there is also a spiritual body.

224. Image of the man of heaven (1 Corinthians 15:49)

Just as we have borne the image of the man of dust, we shall also bear the image of the man of heaven.

225. All be changed (1 Corinthians 15:51-52)

Behold! I tell you a mystery. We shall not all sleep, but we shall all be changed, in a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trumpet. For the trumpet will sound, and the dead will be raised imperishable, and we shall be changed.

226. Victory and immortality (1 Corinthians 15:54-57)

When the perishable puts on the imperishable, and the mortal puts on immortality, then shall come to pass the saying that is written: "Death is swallowed up in victory. O death, where is your victory? O death, where is your sting?" The sting of death is sin, and the power of sin is the law. But thanks be to God, who gives us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.

227. Labor is not in vain (1 Corinthians 15:58)

Therefore, my beloved brothers, be steadfast, immovable, always abounding in the work of the Lord, knowing that in the Lord your labor is not in vain.

228. God opens a door (1 Corinthians 16:9)

A wide door for effective work has opened to me, and there are many adversaries.

229. The Lord will come (1 Corinthians 16:22)

If anyone has no love for the Lord, let him be accursed. Our Lord, come!

230. God comforts (2 Corinthians 1:3-4)

Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of mercies and God of all comfort, who comforts us in all our affliction, so that we may be able to comfort those who are in any affliction, with the comfort with which we ourselves are comforted by God.

231. Deliver us (2 Corinthians 1:10)

He delivered us from such a deadly peril, and he will deliver us. On him we have set our hope that he will deliver us again.

232. Grace of God (2 Corinthians 1:12)

For our boast is this, the testimony of our conscience, that we behaved in the world with simplicity and godly sincerity, not by earthly wisdom but by the grace of God, and supremely so toward you.

233. God's promises (2 Corinthians 1:20)

For all the promises of God find their Yes in him. That is why it is through him that we utter our Amen to God for his glory.

234. The Spirit as a guarantee (2 Corinthians 1:21-22)

And it is God who establishes us with you in Christ, and has anointed us, and who has also put his seal on us and given us his Spirit in our hearts as a guarantee.

235. Triumphal procession (2 Corinthians 2:14)

But thanks be to God, who in Christ always leads us in triumphal procession, and through us spreads the fragrance of the knowledge of him everywhere.

236. Ministers of a new covanent (2 Corinthians 3:5-6)

Not that we are sufficient in ourselves to claim anything as coming from us, but our sufficiency is from God, who has made us sufficient to be ministers of a new covenant, not of the letter but of the Spirit. For the letter kills, but the Spirit gives life.

237. More glory (2 Corinthians 3:8-9)

Will not the ministry of the Spirit have even more glory? For if there was glory in the ministry of condemnation, the ministry of righteousness must far exceed it in glory.

238. Freedom (2 Corinthians 3:17)

Now the Lord is the Spirit, and where the Spirit of the Lord is, there is freedom.

239. Transformed into the same image (2 Corinthians 3:18)

And we all, with unveiled face, beholding the glory of the Lord, are being transformed into the same image from one degree of glory to another. For this comes from the Lord who is the Spirit.

240. Surpassing power (2 Corinthians 4:7-9)

But we have this treasure in jars of clay, to show that the surpassing power belongs to God and not to us. We are afflicted in every way, but not crushed; perplexed, but not driven to despair; persecuted, but not forsaken; struck down, but not destroyed;

241. Life of Jesus (2 Corinthians 4:10-12)

always carrying in the body the death of Jesus, so that the life of Jesus may also be manifested in our bodies. For we who live are always being given over to death for Jesus' sake, so that the life of Jesus also may be manifested in our mortal flesh. So death is at work in us, but life in you.

242. Inner renewal (2 Corinthians 4:16)

So we do not lose heart. Though our outer self is wasting away, our inner self is being renewed day by day.

243. Eternal weight of glory (2 Corinthians 4:17)

For this light momentary affliction is preparing for us an eternal weight of glory beyond all comparison.

244. Eternal home (2 Corinthians 5:1)

For we know that if the tent that is our earthly home is destroyed, we have a building from God, a house not made with hands, eternal in the heavens.

245. Walk by faith (2 Corinthians 5:7, 9-10)

For we walk by faith, not by sight. So whether we are at home or away, we make it our aim to please him. For we must all appear before the judgment seat of Christ, so that each one may receive what is due for what he has done in the body, whether good or evil.

246. New creation (2 Corinthians 5:17)

Therefore, if anyone is in Christ, he is a new creation. The old has passed away; behold, the new has come.

247. Righteousness of God (2 Corinthians 5:21)

For our sake he made him to be sin who knew no sin, so that in him we might become the righteousness of God.

248. Favorable time (2 Corinthians 6:2)

For he says, "In a favorable time I listened to you, and in a day of salvation I have helped you." Behold, now is the favorable time; behold, now is the day of salvation.

249. Possessing everything (2 Corinthians 6:10)

as sorrowful, yet always rejoicing; as poor, yet making many rich; as having nothing, yet possessing everything.

250. God's people (2 Corinthians 6:16)

What agreement has the temple of God with idols? For we are the temple of the living God; as God said, "I will make my dwelling among them and walk among them, and I will be their God, and they shall be my people."

251. Holiness (2 Corinthians 7:1)

Since we have these promises, beloved, let us cleanse ourselves from every defilement of body and spirit, bringing holiness to completion in the fear of God.

252. Salvation with regret (2 Corinthians 7:10)

For godly grief produces a repentance that leads to salvation without regret, whereas worldly grief produces death.

253. Become rich (2 Corinthians 8:9)

For you know the grace of our Lord Jesus Christ, that though he was rich, yet for your sake he became poor, so that you by his poverty might become rich.

254. No lack (2 Corinthians 8:15)

As it is written, "Whoever gathered much had nothing left over, and whoever gathered little had no lack."

255. Sufficiency (2 Corinthians 9:8-9)

And God is able to make all grace abound to you, so that having all sufficiency in all things at all times, you may abound in every good work. As it is written, "He has distributed freely, he has given to the poor; his righteousness endures forever."

256. Inexpressible gift (2 Corinthians 9:15)

Thanks be to God for his inexpressible gift!

257. Destroy strongholds (2 Corinthians 10:4-5)

For the weapons of our warfare are not of the flesh but have divine power to destroy strongholds. We destroy arguments and every lofty opinion raised against the knowledge of God, and take every thought captive to obey Christ.

258. Dedicated to Christ (2 Corinthians 11:2)

For I feel a divine jealousy for you, since I betrothed you to one husband, to present you as a pure virgin to Christ.

259. Grace (2 Corinthians 12:9-10)

But he said to me, "My grace is sufficient for you, for my power is made perfect in weakness." Therefore I will boast all the more gladly of my weaknesses, so that the power of Christ may rest upon me. For the sake of Christ, then, I am content with weaknesses, insults, hardships, persecutions, and calamities. For when I am weak, then I am strong.

260. Power (2 Corinthians 13:3)

Since you seek proof that Christ is speaking in me. He is not weak in dealing with you, but is powerful among you.

261. Jesus in us (2 Corinthians 13:5)

Examine yourselves, to see whether you are in the faith. Test yourselves. Or do you not realize this about yourselves, that Jesus Christ is in you?—unless indeed you fail to meet the test!

262. With us (2 Corinthians 13:14)

May the grace of the Lord Jesus Christ, the love of God, and the inspiration of the Holy Spirit be with all of you.

263. Delivered from sin (Galatians 1:4)

Jesus gave himself for our sins to deliver us from the present evil age, according to the will of our God and Father.

264. Revealed His Son (Galatians 1:16)

God was pleased to reveal his Son to me, in order that I might preach him among the Gentiles, I did not immediately consult with anyone.

265. Christ lives in me (Galatians 2:20)

I have been crucified with Christ. It is no longer I who live, but Christ who lives in me. And the life I now live in the flesh I live by faith in the Son of God, who loved me and gave himself for me.

266. Receiving the Spirit by faith (Galatians 3:5)

Does he who supplies the Spirit to you and works miracles among you do so by works of the law, or by hearing with faith?

267. Redeemed from the curse (Galatians 3:13)

Christ redeemed us from the curse of the law by becoming a curse for us—for it is written, "Cursed is everyone who is hanged on a tree."

268. Promise by faith (Galatians 3:22)

But the Scripture imprisoned everything under sin, so that the promise by faith in Jesus Christ might be given to those who believe.

269. Sons of God (Galatians 3:26)

For in Christ Jesus you are all sons of God, through faith.

270. Baptized into Christ (Galatians 3:27)

For as many of you as were baptized into Christ have put on Christ.

271. Heirs (Galatians 3:29)

And if you are Christ's, then you are Abraham's offspring, heirs according to promise.

272. Be the heir of the gods (Galatians 4:6-7)

Since you are sons, God sent the spirit of his son into your hearts and called out to Abba, the Father. So from now on, you are not a slave, but a son. As a son, he is heir to God.

273. Formation of Christ (Galatians 4:19)

...my little children, for whom I am again in the anguish of childbirth until Christ is formed in you!

274. Freedom (Galatians 5:1)

For freedom Christ has set us free; stand firm therefore, and do not submit again to a yoke of slavery.

275. Walk by the Spirit (Galatians 5:16)

But I say, walk by the Spirit, and you will not gratify the desires of the flesh.

276. Fruit of the Spirit (Galatians 5:22-23)

But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, self-control; against such things there is no law.

277. Crucified the flesh (Galatians 5:24)

And those who belong to Christ Jesus have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires.

278. Eternal life (Galatians 6:8-9)

For the one who sows to his own flesh will from the flesh reap corruption, but the one who sows to the Spirit will from the Spirit reap eternal life. And let us not grow weary of doing good, for in due season we will reap, if we do not give up.

279. Boast in the cross (Galatians 6:14)

But far be it from me to boast except in the cross of our Lord Jesus Christ, by which the world has been crucified to me, and I to the world.

280. New creation (Galatians 6:15-16)

For neither circumcision counts for anything, nor uncircumcision, but a new creation. And as for all who walk by this rule, peace and mercy be upon them, and upon the Israel of God.

281. Blessed (Ephesians 1:3)

Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, who has blessed us in Christ with every spiritual blessing in the heavenly places,

282. Chose us (Ephesians 1:4)

Even as he chose us in him before the foundation of the world, we should be holy and blameless before him.

283. Sons (Ephesians 1:5-6)

In love he predestined us for adoption to himself as sons through Jesus Christ, according to the purpose of his will, to the praise of his glorious grace, with which he has blessed us in the Beloved.

284. Redemption (Ephesians 1:7)

In him we have redemption through his blood, the forgiveness of our trespasses, according to the riches of his grace,

285. Unite in him (Ephesians 1:10)

...as a plan for the fullness of time, to unite all things in him, things in heaven and things on earth.

286. Obtained inheritance (Ephesians 1:11)

In him we have obtained an inheritance, having been predestined according to the purpose of him who works all things according to the counsel of his will.

287. Seal of the Holy Spirit (Ephesians 1:13)

In him you also, when you heard the word of truth, the gospel of your salvation, and believed in him, were sealed with the promised Holy Spirit.

288. Spirit of revelation (Ephesians 1:17)

...that the God of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of glory, may give you the Spirit of wisdom and of revelation in the knowledge of him.

289. Eyes of the heart enlightened (Ephesians 1:18a)

...having the eyes of your hearts enlightened, that you may know what is the hope to which he has called you.

290. Glorious inheritance (Ephesians 1:18b)

... the riches of his glorious inheritance in the saints.

291. Great power (Ephesians 1:19-21)

And what is the immeasurable greatness of his power toward us who believe, according to the working of his great might that he worked in Christ when he raised him from the dead and seated him at his right hand in the heavenly places, far above all rule and authority and power and dominion, and above every name that is named, not only in this age but also in the one to come.

292. Fullness (Ephesians 1:22-23)

And he put all things under his feet and gave him as head over all things to the church, which is his body, the fullness of him who fills all in all.

293. Made alive together with Christ (Ephesians 2:5)

Even when we were dead in our trespasses, made us alive together with Christ—by grace you have been saved.

294. Seated together in heaven (Ephesians 2:6)

...and raised us up with him and seated us with him in the heavenly places in Christ Jesus.

295. Saved through faith (Ephesians 2:8)

For by grace you have been saved through faith. And this is not your own doing; it is the gift of God.

296. God's workmanship (Ephesians 2:10)

For we are his workmanship, created in Christ Jesus for good works, which God prepared beforehand, that we should walk in them.

297. Near to God (Ephesians 2:13)

But now in Christ Jesus you who once were far off have been brought near by the blood of Christ.

298. New man (Ephesians 2:15)

...by abolishing the law of commandments expressed in ordinances, that he might create in himself one new man in place of the two, so making peace.

299. Saints (Ephesians 2:19)

So then you are no longer strangers and aliens, but you are fellow citizens with the saints and members of the household of God,

300. Holy temple (Ephesians 2:20-21)

...built on the foundation of the apostles and prophets, Christ Jesus himself being the cornerstone, in whom the whole structure, being joined together, grows into a holy temple in the Lord.

301. Fellow heirs (Ephesians 3:6)

This mystery is that the Gentiles are fellow heirs, members of the same body, and partakers of the promise in Christ Jesus through the gospel.

302. Unsearchable riches (Ephesians 3:8)

To me, though I am the very least of all the saints, this grace was given, to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ.

303. Wisdom of God (Ephesians 3:10-11)

...so that through the church the manifold wisdom of God might now be made known to the rulers and authorities in the heavenly places. This was according to the eternal purpose that he has realized in Christ Jesus our Lord.

304. Stengthened (Ephesians 3:16)

...that according to the riches of his glory he may grant you to be strengthened with power through his Spirit in your inner being.

305. Christ dwells in the heart (Ephesians 3:17)

...so that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith—that you, being rooted and grounded in love.

306. Understanding the Love of the Lord (Ephesians 3:18)

...may have strength to comprehend with all the saints what is the breadth and length and height and depth.

307. Filled with the fullness of God (Ephesians 3:19)

...and to know the love of Christ that surpasses knowledge, that you may be filled with all the fullness of God.

308. More than we think (Ephesians 3:20)

Now to him who is able to do far more abundantly than all that we ask or think, according to the power at work within us,

309. Building up the body (Ephesians 4:11-12)

And he gave the apostles, the prophets, the evangelists, the shepherds and teachers, to equip the saints for the work of ministry, for building up the body of Christ.

310. Build in love (Ephesians 4:16)

...from whom the whole body, joined and held together by every joint with which it is equipped, when each part is working properly, makes the body grow so that it builds itself up in love.

311. Renewed (Ephesians 4:23-24)

...and to be renewed in the spirit of your minds, and to put on the new self, created after the likeness of God in true righteousness and holiness.

312. Children of light (Ephesians 5:8)

For at one time you were darkness, but now you are light in the Lord. Walk as children of light.

313. Christ will shine on you (Ephesians 5:14)

...for anything that becomes visible is light. Therefore it says, "Awake, O sleeper, and arise from the dead, and Christ will shine on you."

314. Filled with the Spirit (Ephesians 5:18-20)

And do not get drunk with wine, for that is debauchery, but be filled with the Spirit, addressing one another in psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, singing and making melody to the Lord with your heart, giving thanks always and for everything to God the Father in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ.

315. Without blemish (Ephesians 5:26-27)

...that he might sanctify her, having cleansed her by the washing of water with the word, so that he might present the church to himself in splendor, without spot or wrinkle or any such thing, that she might be holy and without blemish.

316. Profound mystery (Ephesians 5:31-32)

"Therefore a man shall leave his father and mother and hold fast to his wife, and the two shall become one flesh." This mystery is profound, and I am saying that it refers to Christ and the church.

317. Honor your father and mother (Ephesians 6:2)

"Honor your father and mother" (this is the first commandment with a promise).

318. Receive back (Ephesians 6:8)

...knowing that whatever good anyone does, this he will receive back from the Lord, whether he is a bondservant or is free.

319. Be strong (Ephesians 6:10-11)

Finally, be strong in the Lord and in the strength of his might. Put on the whole armor of God, that you may be able to stand against the schemes of the devil.

320. The sword of the Spirit (Ephesians 6:17)

...and take the helmet of salvation, and the sword of the Spirit, which is the word of God.

321. Prayer (Ephesians 6:18-19)

...praying at all times in the Spirit, with all prayer and supplication. To that end, keep alert with all perseverance, making supplication for all the saints, and also for me, that words may be given to me in opening my mouth boldly to proclaim the mystery of the gospel.

322. Perfecting the work (Philippians 1:5-6)

For from the first day until now, you are the prosperous gospel of one heart. I am convinced that those who have done good works in your hearts will complete them until the day of Jesus Christ.

323. Blameless (Philippians 1:10)

...so that you may approve what is excellent, and so be pure and blameless for the day of Christ.

324. Filled with the fruit of righteousness (Philippians 1:11)

...filled with the fruit of righteousness that comes through Jesus Christ, to the glory and praise of God.

325. Honor Christ with your body (Philippians 1:20)

...as it is my eager expectation and hope that I will not be at all ashamed, but that with full courage now as always Christ will be honored in my body, whether by life or by death.

326. Live is Christ (Philippians 1:21)

For to me to live is Christ, and to die is gain.

327. Far better (Philippians 1:23)

I am hard pressed between the two. My desire is to depart and be with Christ, for that is far better.

328. Heart of humility (Philippians 2:5-8)

Have this mind among yourselves, which is yours in Christ Jesus, who, though he was in the form of God, did not count equality with God a thing to be grasped, but emptied himself, by taking the form of a servant, being born in the likeness of men. And being found in human form, he humbled himself by becoming obedient to the point of death, even death on a cross.

329. God works in you (Philippians 2:13)

For it is God who works in you, both to will and to work for his good pleasure.

330. Children of God (Philippians 2:15)

...that you may be blameless and innocent, children of God without blemish in the midst of a crooked and twisted generation, among whom you shine as lights in the world.

331. Not in vain (Philippians 2:15-16)

...holding fast to the word of life, so that in the day of Christ I may be proud that I did not run in vain or labor in vain.

332. Surpassing worth of knowing Jesus (Philippians 3:8-9)

Indeed, I count everything as loss because of the surpassing worth of knowing Christ Jesus my Lord. For his sake I have suffered the loss of all things and count them as rubbish, in order that I may gain Christ and be found in him, not having a righteousness of my own that comes from the law, but that which comes through faith in Christ, the righteousness from God that depends on faith.

333. The above reward (Philippians 3:13-14)

Brethren, I don't think I've got it. I had only one thing, and I tried to remember what was in front of me, and ran straight to the pole to receive the reward that God had called me from above in Christ Jesus.

334. Transform into glorious body (Philippians 3:20-21)

But our citizenship is in heaven, and from it we await a Savior, the Lord Jesus Christ, who will transform our lowly body to be like his glorious body, by the power that enables him even to subject all things to himself.

335. Book of life (Philippians 4:3)

Yes, I ask you also, true companion, help these women, who have labored side by side with me in the gospel together with Clement and the rest of my fellow workers, whose names are in the book of life.

336. Rejoice (Philippians 4:4)

Rejoice in the Lord always; again I will say, rejoice.

337. Do not be anxious (Philippians 4:6)

Do not be anxious about anything, but in everything by prayer and supplication with thanksgiving let your requests be made known to God.

338. Peace (Philippians 4:7)

And the peace of God, which surpasses all understanding, will guard your hearts and your minds in Christ Jesus.

339. Content (Philippians 4:11)

Not that I am speaking of being in need, for I have learned in whatever situation I am to be content.

340. Do all things (Philippians 4:12-13)

I know how to be brought low, and I know how to abound. In any and every circumstance, I have learned the secret of facing plenty and hunger, abundance and need. I can do all things through him who strengthens me.

341. Sufficient (Philippians 4:19)

And my God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus.

342. Share in inheritance (Colossians 1:12-13)

...giving thanks to the Father, who has qualified you to share in the inheritance of the saints in light. He has delivered us from the domain of darkness and transferred us to the kingdom of his beloved Son.

343. Hope of glory (Colossians 1:27)

To them God chose to make known how great among the Gentiles are the riches of the glory of this mystery, which is Christ in you, the hope of glory.

344. Whole fullness (Colossians 2:9-10)

For in him the whole fullness of deity dwells bodily, and you have been filled in him, who is the head of all rule and authority.

345. Buried and raised with him (Colossians 2:12)

...having been buried with him in baptism, in which you were also raised with him through faith in the powerful working of God, who raised him from the dead.

346. Triumphant (Colossians 2:14-15)

...by canceling the record of debt that stood against us with its legal demands. This he set aside, nailing it to the cross. He disarmed the rulers and authorities and put them to open shame, by triumphing over them in him.

347. Life in God (Colossians 3:2-3)

Set your minds on things that are above, not on things that are on earth. For you have died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God.

348. Christ is life (Colossians 3:4)

When Christ who is your life appears, then you also will appear with him in glory.

349. New self (Colossians 3:10)

...and have put on the new self, which is being renewed in knowledge after the image of its creator.

350. Love (Colossians 3:12-15)

Put on then, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, compassionate hearts, kindness, humility, meekness, and patience, bearing with one another and, if one has a complaint against another, forgiving each other; as the Lord has forgiven you, so you also must forgive. And above all these put on love, which binds everything together in perfect harmony. And let the peace of Christ rule in your hearts, to which indeed you were called in one body.

351. Praise to God (Colossians 3:16)

Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly, teaching and admonishing one another in all wisdom, singing psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, with thankfulness in your hearts to God.

352. Inheritance as your reward (Colossians 3:24)

...knowing that from the Lord you will receive the inheritance as your reward. You are serving the Lord Christ.

353. Stand mature (Colossians 4:12)

Epaphras, who is one of you, a servant of Christ Jesus, greets you, always struggling on your behalf in his prayers, that you may stand mature and fully assured in all the will of God.

354. Faith, love, and hope (1 Thessalonians 1:3)

...remembering before our God and Father your work of faith and labor of love and steadfastness of hope in our Lord Jesus Christ.

355. In power (1 Thessalonians 1:5)

For our gospel came to you not only in word, but also in power and in the Holy Spirit and with full conviction.

356. Wait for the Lord to come (1 Thessalonians 1:10)

...and to wait for his Son from heaven, whom he raised from the dead, Jesus who delivers us from the wrath to come.

357. God's kingdom and glory (1 Thessalonians 2:12)

We exhorted each one of you and encouraged you and charged you to walk in a manner worthy of God, who calls you into his own kingdom and glory.

358. Received the word of God (1 Thessalonians 2:13)

And we also thank God constantly for this, that when you received the word of God, which you heard from us, you accepted it not as the word of men but as what it really is, the word of God, which is at work in you believers.

359. Holy before God (1 Thessalonians 3:13)

...so that he may establish your hearts blameless in holiness before our God and Father, at the coming of our Lord Jesus with all his saints.

360. Holy (1 Thessalonians 4:3, 7)

For this is the will of God, your sanctification: that you abstain from sexual immorality. For God has not called us for impurity, but in holiness.

361. Be with the Lord (1 Thessalonians 4:16-17)

For the Lord himself will descend from heaven with a cry of command, with the voice of an archangel, and with the sound of the trumpet of God. And the dead in Christ will rise first. Then we who are alive, who are left, will be caught up together with them in the clouds to meet the Lord in the air, and so we will always be with the Lord.

362. Salvation (1 Thessalonians 5:9)

For God has not destined us for wrath, but to obtain salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ.

363. God's will (1 Thessalonians 5:16-18)

Rejoice always, pray without ceasing, give thanks in all circumstances; for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus for you.

364. Complete sanctification (1 Thessalonians 5:23)

Now may the God of peace himself sanctify you completely, and may your whole spirit and soul and body be kept blameless at the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ.

365. Worthy of the kingdom of God (2 Thessalonians 1:5)

This is evidence of the righteous judgment of God, that you may be considered worthy of the kingdom of God, for which you are also suffering.

366. Marveled (2 Thessalonians 1:10)

...when he comes on that day to be glorified in his saints, and to be marveled at among all who have believed, because our testimony to you was believed.

367. Worthy of God's calling (2 Thessalonians 1:11)

To this end we always pray for you, that our God may make you worthy of his calling and may fulfill every resolve for good and every work of faith by his power.

368. Eternal comfort (2 Thessalonians 2:16)

The Lord Jesus Christ himself, and God our Father, loved us and gave us eternal comfort and good hope through grace.

369. Love and steadfastness (2 Thessalonians 3:5)

May the Lord direct your hearts to the love of God and to the steadfastness of Christ.

370. Love from a pure heart (1 Timothy 1:5)

The aim of our charge is love that issues from a pure heart and a good conscience and a sincere faith.

371. Save sinners (1 Timothy 1:15)

The saying is trustworthy and deserving of full acceptance, that Christ Jesus came into the world to save sinners, of whom I am the foremost.

372. Live in peace (1 Timothy 2:1-2)

First of all, then, I urge that supplications, prayers, intercessions, and thanksgivings be made for all people, for kings and all who are in high positions, that we may lead a peaceful and quiet life, godly and dignified in every way.

373. Saved through childbearing (1 Timthy 2:15)

Yet she will be saved through childbearing—if they continue in faith and love and holiness, with self-control.

374. Household of God (1 Timothy 3:15)

If I delay, you may know how one ought to behave in the household of God, which is the church of the living God, a pillar and buttress of the truth.

375. Mystery of godliness (1 Timothy 3:16)

Great indeed, we confess, is the mystery of godliness: He was manifested in the flesh, vindicated by the Spirit, seen by angels, proclaimed among the nations, believed on in the world, taken up in glory.

376. Received with thanksgiving (1 Timothy 4:4-5)

For everything created by God is good, and nothing is to be rejected if it is received with thanksgiving, for it is made holy by the word of God and prayer.

377. Godliness (1 Timothy 4:8)

For while bodily training is of some value, godliness is of value in every way, as it holds promise for the present life and also for the life to come.

378. Example for believers (1 Timothy 4:12)

Let no one despise you for your youth, but set the believers an example in speech, in conduct, in love, in faith, in purity.

379. Godliness with contentment (1 Timothy 6:6-8)

But godliness with contentment is great gain, for we brought nothing into the world, and we cannot take anything out of the world. But if we have food and clothing, with these we will be content.

380. Good works (1 Timothy 6:18-19)

They are to do good, to be rich in good works, to be generous and ready to share, thus storing up treasure for themselves as a good foundation for the future, so that they may take hold of that which is truly life.

381. Fan into flame the gift of God (2 Timothy 1:6-7)

For this reason I remind you to fan into flame the gift of God, which is in you through the laying on of my hands, for God gave us a spirit not of fear but of power and love and self-control.

382. Brought immortality to light (2 Timothy 1:10)

...and which now has been manifested through the appearing of our Savior Christ Jesus, who abolished death and brought life and immortality to light through the gospel.

383. Guard us (2 Timothy 1:12)

But I am not ashamed, for I know whom I have believed, and I am convinced that he is able to guard until that day what has been entrusted to me.

384. Reign with Him (2 Timothy 2:11-12)

The saying is trustworthy, for: If we have died with him, we will also live with him; if we endure, we will also reign with him; if we deny him, he also will deny us.

385. Approved worker (2 Timothy 2:15)

Do your best to present yourself to God as one approved, a worker who has no need to be ashamed, rightly handling the word of truth.

386. Vessel for honorable use (2 Timothy 2:21)

Therefore, if anyone cleanses himself from what is dishonorable, he will be a vessel for honorable use, set apart as holy, useful to the master of the house, ready for every good work.

387. Wise for salvation (2 Timothy 3:15)

...and how from childhood you have been acquainted with the sacred writings, which are able to make you wise for salvation through faith in Christ Jesus.

388. Profitable (2 Timothy 3:16)

All Scripture is breathed out by God and profitable for teaching, for reproof, for correction, and for training in righteousness.

389. Crown of righteousness (2 Timothy 4:7-8)

I have fought the good fight, I have finished the race, I have kept the faith. Henceforth there is laid up for me the crown of righteousness, which the Lord, the righteous judge, will award to me on that day, and not only to me but also to all who have loved his appearing.

390. The Lord will rescue me (2 Timothy 4:17-18)

But the Lord stood by me and strengthened me, so that through me the message might be fully proclaimed and all the Gentiles might hear it. So I was rescued from the lion's mouth. The Lord will rescue me from every evil deed and bring me safely into his heavenly kingdom.

391. Waiting for the appearing (Titus 2:12-13)

...training us to renounce ungodliness and worldly passions, and to live self-controlled, upright, and godly lives in the present age, waiting for our blessed hope, the appearing of the glory of our great God and Savior Jesus Christ.

392. Zealous for good works (Titus 2:14)

Jesus gave himself for us to redeem us from all lawlessness and to purify for himself a people for his own possession who are zealous for good works.

393. Renewal of the Holy Spirit (Titus 3:5)

He saved us, not because of works done by us in righteousness, but according to his own mercy, by the washing of regeneration and renewal of the Holy Spirit.

394. Have Him forever (Philemon 15)

For this perhaps is why he was parted from you for a while, that you might have him back forever.

4. In the Other Epistles

395. Upholds the universe (Hebrews 1:3)

He is the radiance of the glory of God and the exact imprint of his nature, and he upholds the universe by the word of his power. After making purification for sins, he sat down at the right hand of the Majesty on high.

396. Bring to glory (Hebrews 2:10-11)

For it was fitting that he, for whom and by whom all things exist, in bringing many sons to glory, should make the founder of their salvation perfect through suffering. For he who

sanctifies and those who are sanctified all have one source. That is why he is not ashamed to call them brothers.

397. Children (Hebrews 2:14)

Since therefore the children share in flesh and blood, he himself likewise partook of the same things, that through death he might destroy the one who has the power of death, that is, the devil.

398. Help in temptation (Hebrews 2:18)

For because he himself has suffered when tempted, he is able to help those who are being tempted.

399. Share in Christ (Hebrews 3:6, 14)

But Christ is faithful over God's house as a son. And we are his house, if indeed we hold fast our confidence and our boasting in our hope. For we have come to share in Christ, if indeed we hold our original confidence firm to the end.

400. Enter his rest (Hebrews 4:1, 3)

Therefore, while the promise of entering his rest still stands, let us fear lest any of you should seem to have failed to reach it. For we who have believed enter that rest, as he has said, "As I swore in my wrath, 'They shall not enter my rest,'" although his works were finished from the foundation of the world.

401. Word of God (Hebrews 4:12)

For the word of God is living and active, sharper than any two-edged sword, piercing to the division of soul and of spirit, of joints and of marrow, and discerning the thoughts and intentions of the heart.

402. Throne of grace (Hebrews 4:16)

Let us then with confidence draw near to the throne of grace, that we may receive mercy and find grace to help in time of need.

403. Source of eternal salvation (Hebrews 5:8-9)

Although he was a son, he learned obedience through what he suffered. And being made perfect, he became the source of eternal salvation to all who obey him.

404. Inherit the promises (Hebrews 6:12)

...so that you may not be sluggish, but imitators of those who through faith and patience inherit the promises.

405. Save to the uttermost (Hebrews 7:25)

Consequently, he is able to save to the uttermost those who draw near to God through him, since he always lives to make intercession for them.

406. New covenant (Hebrews 8:10-11)

For this is the covenant that I will make with the house of Israel after those days, declares the Lord: I will put my laws into their minds, and write them on their hearts, and I will be their God, and they shall be my people. And they shall not teach, each one his neighbor and each one his brother, saying, 'Know the Lord,' for they shall all know me, from the least of them to the greatest.

407. Purify our conscience (Hebrews 9:14)

...how much more will the blood of Christ, who through the eternal Spirit offered himself without blemish to God, purify our conscience from dead works to serve the living God.

408. Eternal inheritance (Hebrews 9:15)

Therefore he is the mediator of a new covenant, so that those who are called may receive the promised eternal inheritance, since a death has occurred that redeems them from the transgressions committed under the first covenant.

409. Second coming (Hebrews 9:28)

So Christ, having been offered once to bear the sins of many, will appear a second time, not to deal with sin but to save those who are eagerly waiting for him.

410. Perfected for all time (Hebrews 10:10, 14)

And by that will we have been sanctified through the offering of the body of Jesus Christ once for all. For by a single offering he has perfected for all time those who are being sanctified.

411. Holy places (Hebrews 10:19-22)

Therefore, brothers, since we have confidence to enter the holy places by the blood of Jesus, by the new and living way that he opened for us through the curtain, that is, through his flesh, and since we have a great priest over the house of God, let us draw near with a true heart in full assurance of faith, with our hearts sprinkled clean from an evil conscience and our bodies washed with pure water.

412. Eternal reward (Hebrews 10:34-36)

For you had compassion on those in prison, and you joyfully accepted the plundering of your property, since you knew that you yourselves had a better possession and an abiding one. Therefore do not throw away your confidence, which has a great reward. For you have need of endurance, so that when you have done the will of God you may receive what is promised.

413. Faith (Hebrews 10:37-39)

For, "Yet a little while, and the coming one will come and will not delay; but my righteous one shall live by faith, and if he shrinks back, my soul has no pleasure in him." But we are not of those who shrink back and are destroyed, but of those who have faith and preserve their souls.

414. Faith (Hebrews 11:6)

And without faith it is impossible to please him, for whoever would draw near to God must believe that he exists and that he rewards those who seek him.

415. Better country (Hebrews 11:10, 16)

For he was looking forward to the city that has foundations, whose designer and builder is God. But as it is, they desire a better country, that is, a heavenly one. Therefore God is not ashamed to be called their God, for he has prepared for them a city.

416. Looking to the reward (Hebrews 11:25-26)

Choosing rather to be mistreated with the people of God than to enjoy the fleeting pleasures of sin, Moses considered the reproach of Christ greater wealth than the treasures of Egypt, for he was looking to the reward.

```
417. Received by faith (Hebrews 11:39-40)
```

And all these, though commended through their faith, did not receive what was promised, since God had provided something better for us, that apart from us they should not be made perfect.

418. Holiness (Hebrews 12:10)

For they disciplined us for a short time as it seemed best to them, but he disciplines us for our good, that we may share his holiness.

420. Come to Mount Zion (Hebrews 12:22, 24, 28)

But you have come to Mount Zion and to the city of the living God, the heavenly Jerusalem, and to innumerable angels in festal gathering, and to Jesus, the mediator of a new covenant, and to the sprinkled blood that speaks a better word than the blood of Abel. Therefore let us be grateful for receiving a kingdom that cannot be shaken, and thus let us offer to God acceptable worship, with reverence and awe.

420. Never forsake us (Hebrews 13:5-6)

Keep your life free from love of money, and be content with what you have, for he has said, "I will never leave you nor forsake you." So we can confidently say, "The Lord is my helper; I will not fear; what can man do to me?"

421. Sacrifice of praise to God (Hebrews 13:15-16)

Through him then let us continually offer up a sacrifice of praise to God, that is, the fruit of lips that acknowledge his name. Do not neglect to do good and to share what you have, for such sacrifices are pleasing to God.

422. God's will (Hebrews 13:21)

May God equip you with everything good that you may do his will, working in us that which is pleasing in his sight, through Jesus Christ, to whom be glory forever and ever.

423. Perfect and complete (James 1:2-4)

Count it all joy, my brothers, when you meet trials of various kinds, for you know that the testing of your faith produces steadfastness. And let steadfastness have its full effect, that you may be perfect and complete, lacking in nothing.

424. God will give wisdom (James 1:5-6)

If any of you lacks wisdom, let him ask God, who gives generously to all without reproach, and it will be given him. But let him ask in faith, with no doubting, for the one who doubts is like a wave of the sea that is driven and tossed by the wind.

425. Crown of Life (James 1:12-13)

Blessed is the man who remains steadfast under trial, for when he has stood the test he will receive the crown of life, which God has promised to those who love him. Let no one say when he is tempted, "I am being tempted by God," for God cannot be tempted with evil, and he himself tempts no one.

426. Good and perfect gift (James 1:17)

Every good gift and every perfect gift is from above, coming down from the Father of lights, with whom there is no variation or shadow due to change.

427. Heirs of the kingdom (James 2:5)

Listen, my beloved brothers, has not God chosen those who are poor in the world to be rich in faith and heirs of the kingdom, which he has promised to those who love him?

428. Resist the devil and he will flee (James 4:7)

Submit yourselves therefore to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you.

429. God will draw near (James 4:8)

Draw near to God, and he will draw near to you. Cleanse your hands, you sinners, and purify your hearts, you double-minded.

430. The Lord is near (James 5:7, 9)

Be patient, therefore, brothers, until the coming of the Lord. See how the farmer waits for the precious fruit of the earth, being patient about it, until it receives the early and the late rains. Do not grumble against one another, brothers, so that you may not be judged; behold, the Judge is standing at the door.

431. The sick are healed (James 5:14-15)

Is anyone among you sick? Let him call for the elders of the church, and let them pray over him, anointing him with oil in the name of the Lord. And the prayer of faith will save the one who is sick, and the Lord will raise him up. And if he has committed sins, he will be forgiven.

432. Prayer (James 5:16-18)

Therefore, confess your sins to one another and pray for one another, that you may be healed. The prayer of a righteous person has great power as it is working. Elijah was a man with a nature like ours, and he prayed fervently that it might not rain, and for three years and six months it did not rain on the earth. Then he prayed again, and heaven gave rain, and the earth bore its fruit.

433. Living hope (1 Peter 1:3-4)

Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ! According to his great mercy, he has caused us to be born again to a living hope through the resurrection of Jesus Christ from the dead, to an inheritance that is imperishable, undefiled, and unfading, kept in heaven for you.

434. Faith is precious (1 Peter 1:7-9)

...so that the tested genuineness of your faith—more precious than gold that perishes though it is tested by fire—may be found to result in praise and glory and honor at the revelation of Jesus Christ. Though you have not seen him, you love him. Though you do not now see him, you believe in him and rejoice with joy that is inexpressible and filled with glory, obtaining the outcome of your faith, the salvation of your souls.

435. Spiritual house (1 Peter 2:5)

You yourselves like living stones are being built up as a spiritual house, to be a holy priesthood, to offer spiritual sacrifices acceptable to God through Jesus Christ.

436. Priests (1 Peter 2:9)

But you are a chosen race, a royal priesthood, a holy nation, a people for his own possession, that you may proclaim the excellencies of him who called you out of darkness into his marvelous light.

437. Healing for sin (1 Peter 2:24)

He himself bore our sins in his body on the tree, that we might die to sin and live to righteousness. By his wounds you have been healed.

```
438. Bless (1 Peter 3:9)
```

Do not repay evil for evil or reviling for reviling, but on the contrary, bless, for to this you were called, that you may obtain a blessing.

439. Good conscience (1 Peter 3:21)

Baptism, which corresponds to this, now saves you, not as a removal of dirt from the body but as an appeal to God for a good conscience, through the resurrection of Jesus Christ.

440. Ceased from sin (1 Peter 4:1)

Since therefore Christ suffered in the flesh, arm yourselves with the same way of thinking, for whoever has suffered in the flesh has ceased from sin.

```
441. Love covers sin (1 Peter 4:7-8)
```

The end of all things is at hand; therefore be self-controlled and sober-minded for the sake of your prayers. Above all, keep loving one another earnestly, since love covers a multitude of sins.

442. Spirit of glory (1 Peter 4:13-14)

But rejoice insofar as you share Christ's sufferings, that you may also rejoice and be glad when his glory is revealed. If you are insulted for the name of Christ, you are blessed, because the Spirit of glory and of God rests upon you.

443. Crown of glory (1 Peter 5:4)

And when the chief Shepherd appears, you will receive the unfading crown of glory.

444. God gives grace to the humble (1 Peter 5:5)

Likewise, you who are younger, be subject to the elders. Clothe yourselves, all of you, with humility toward one another, for "God opposes the proud but gives grace to the humble."

445. Exalt you (1 Peter 5:6)

Humble yourselves, therefore, under the mighty hand of God so that at the proper time he may exalt you.

```
446. God cares for you (1 Peter 5:7)
```

...casting all your anxieties on him, because he cares for you.

447. Resist the devil (1 Peter 5:8-9)

Be sober-minded; be watchful. Your adversary the devil prowls around like a roaring lion, seeking someone to devour. Resist him, firm in your faith, knowing that the same kinds of suffering are being experienced by your brotherhood throughout the world.

448. God will establish you (1 Peter 5:10)

And after you have suffered a little while, the God of all grace, who has called you to his eternal glory in Christ, will himself restore, confirm, strengthen, and establish you.

449. Great promises (2 Peter 1:4)

...by which he has granted to us his precious and very great promises, so that through them you may become partakers of the divine nature, having escaped from the corruption that is in the world because of sinful desire.

450. Never fall (2 Peter 1:10-11)

Therefore, brothers, be all the more diligent to confirm your calling and election, for if you practice these qualities you will never fall. For in this way there will be richly provided for you an entrance into the eternal kingdom of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ.

```
451. Morning star rises (2 Peter 1:19)
```

And we have the prophetic word more fully confirmed, to which you will do well to pay attention as to a lamp shining in a dark place, until the day dawns and the morning star rises in your hearts,

452. Rescue from trials (2 Peter 2:9)

The Lord knows how to rescue the godly from trials, and to keep the unrighteous under punishment until the day of judgment.

453. Repentance (2 Peter 3:9)

The Lord is not slow to fulfill his promise as some count slowness, but is patient toward you, not wishing that any should perish, but that all should reach repentance.

454. Wait for the Lord in peace (2 Peter 3:13-14)

But according to his promise we are waiting for new heavens and a new earth in which righteousness dwells. Therefore, beloved, since you are waiting for these, be diligent to be found by him without spot or blemish, and at peace.

455. Word of life (1 John 1:1, 3)

That which was from the beginning, which we have heard, which we have seen with our eyes, which we looked upon and have touched with our hands, concerning the word of life, that which we have seen and heard we proclaim also to you, so that you too may have fellowship with us; and indeed our fellowship is with the Father and with his Son Jesus Christ.

456. Cleansed by his blood (1 John 1:5, 7)

This is the message we have heard from him and proclaim to you, that God is light, and in him is no darkness at all. But if we walk in the light, as he is in the light, we have fellowship with one another, and the blood of Jesus his Son cleanses us from all sin.

457. Confession of sins (1 John 1:9)

If we confess our sins, he is faithful and just to forgive us our sins and to cleanse us from all unrighteousness.

```
458. Jesus, our advocate (1 John 2:1)
```

My little children, I am writing these things to you so that you may not sin. But if anyone does sin, we have an advocate with the Father, Jesus Christ the righteous.

459. Overcome the evil one (1 John 2:14)

I write to you, fathers, because you know him who is from the beginning. I write to you, young men, because you are strong, and the word of God abides in you, and you have overcome the evil one.

460. Do not love the world (1 John 2:15, 17)

Do not love the world or the things in the world. If anyone loves the world, the love of the Father is not in him. And the world is passing away along with its desires, but whoever does the will of God abides forever.

461. Anointing (1 John 2:27)

But the anointing that you received from him abides in you, and you have no need that anyone should teach you. But as his anointing teaches you about everything, and is true, and is no lie—just as it has taught you, abide in him.

462. Children of God (1 John 3:1)

See what kind of love the Father has given to us, that we should be called children of God; and so we are. The reason why the world does not know us is that it did not know him.

463. Be like him (1 John 3:2-3)

Beloved, we are God's children now, and what we will be has not yet appeared; but we know that when he appears we shall be like him, because we shall see him as he is. And everyone who thus hopes in him purifies himself as he is pure.

464. Stop sinning (1 John 3:6, 9)

No one who abides in him keeps on sinning; no one who keeps on sinning has either seen him or known him. No one born of God makes a practice of sinning, for God's seed abides in him; and he cannot keep on sinning, because he has been born of God.

465. Keep his commandments(1 John 3:21-22)

Beloved, if our heart does not condemn us, we have confidence before God; and whatever we ask we receive from him, because we keep his commandments and do what pleases him.

466. Overcome evil (1 John 4:4)

Little children, you are from God and have overcome them, for he who is in you is greater than he who is in the world.

467. God abides in us (1 John 4:16)

So we have come to know and to believe the love that God has for us. God is love, and whoever abides in love abides in God, and God abides in him.

468. Overcomes the world (1 John 5:4)

For everyone who has been born of God overcomes the world. And this is the victory that has overcome the world—our faith.

469. God's witness (1 John 5:10-12)

Whoever believes in the Son of God has the testimony in himself. Whoever does not believe God has made him a liar, because he has not believed in the testimony that God has borne concerning his Son. And this is the testimony, that God gave us eternal life, and this life is in his Son. Whoever has the Son has life; whoever does not have the Son of God does not have life. 470. God hears us (1 John 5:14)

And this is the confidence that we have toward him, that if we ask anything according to his will he hears us.

471. God protects (1 John 5:18)

We know that everyone who has been born of God does not keep on sinning, but he who was born of God protects him, and the evil one does not touch him.

472. Eternal life (1 John 5:20-21)

And we know that the Son of God has come and has given us understanding, so that we may know him who is true; and we are in him who is true, in his Son Jesus Christ. He is the true God and eternal life. Little children, keep yourselves from idols.

473. Truth abides forever (2 John 2)

...because of the truth that abides in us and will be with us forever.

474. Full reward (2 John 8)

Watch yourselves, so that you may not lose what we have worked for, but may win a full reward.

```
475. Walking in truth (3 John 3:2)
```

For I rejoiced greatly when the brothers came and testified to your truth, as indeed you are walking in the truth.

476. In God's love (Jude 20-21)

But you, beloved, building yourselves up in your most holy faith and praying in the Holy Spirit, keep yourselves in the love of God, waiting for the mercy of our Lord Jesus Christ that leads to eternal life.

477. Blameless before God (Jude 24-25)

Now to him who is able to keep you from stumbling and to present you blameless before the presence of his glory with great joy, to the only God, our Savior, through Jesus Christ our Lord, be glory, majesty, dominion, and authority, before all time and now and forever.

5. In the Book of Revelation

478. Freed from sin (Revelation 1:5-6)

Jesus Christ the faithful witness, the firstborn of the dead, and the ruler of kings on earth, who loves us and has freed us from our sins by his blood and made us a kingdom, priests to his God and Father, to him be glory and dominion forever and ever.

479. Have the keys of death (Revelation 1:17-18)

He said, "Fear not, I am the first and the last, and the living one. I died, and behold I am alive forevermore, and I have the keys of Death and Hades."

480. Tree of life (Revelation 2:7)

He who has an ear, let him hear what the Spirit says to the churches. To the one who conquers I will grant to eat of the tree of life, which is in the paradise of God.

481. Crown of life (Revelation 2:10)

Do not fear what you are about to suffer. Behold, the devil is about to throw some of you into prison, that you may be tested, and for ten days you will have tribulation. Be faithful unto death, and I will give you the crown of life.

482. Hidden manna (Revelation 2:17)

He who has an ear, let him hear what the Spirit says to the churches. To the one who conquers I will give some of the hidden manna, and I will give him a white stone, with a new name written on the stone that no one knows except the one who receives it.

483. Authority over the nations (Revelation 2:26)

The one who conquers and who keeps my works until the end, to him I will give authority over the nations.

484. White garments (Revelation 3:4)

Yet you have still a few names in Sardis, people who have not soiled their garments, and they will walk with me in white, for they are worthy.

485. Sit together on the throne (Revelation 3:21)

The one who conquers, I will grant him to sit with me on my throne, as I also conquered and sat down with my Father on his throne.

486. Reign on earth (Revelation 5:9-10)

And they sang a new song, saying, "Worthy are you to take the scroll and to open its seals, for you were slain, and by your blood you ransomed people for God from every tribe and language and people and nation, and you have made them a kingdom and priests to our God, and they shall reign on the earth."

487. Serve in his temple (Revelation 7:14-15)

I said to him, "Sir, you know." And he said to me, "These are the ones coming out of the great tribulation. They have washed their robes and made them white in the blood of the Lamb. "Therefore they are before the throne of God, and serve him day and night in his temple; and he who sits on the throne will shelter them with his presence."

488. Living water (Revelation 7:17)

For the Lamb in the midst of the throne will be their shepherd, and he will guide them to springs of living water, and God will wipe away every tear from their eyes.

489. Reign forever (Revelation 11:15)

Then the seventh angel blew his trumpet, and there were loud voices in heaven, saying, "The kingdom of the world has become the kingdom of our Lord and of his Christ, and he shall reign forever and ever."

490. Conquered Satan (Revelation 12:11)

And they have conquered him by the blood of the Lamb and by the word of their testimony, for they loved not their lives even unto death.

491. Mount Zion (Revelation 14:1, 4-5)

Then I looked, and behold, on Mount Zion stood the Lamb, and with him 144,000 who had his name and his Father's name written on their foreheads. It is these who have not defiled themselves with women, for they are virgins. It is these who follow the Lamb wherever he goes. These have been redeemed from mankind as firstfruits for God and the Lamb, 5 and in their mouth no lie was found, for they are blameless.

492. Deeds follows (Revelation 14:13)

And I heard a voice from heaven saying, "Write this: Blessed are the dead who die in the Lord from now on." "Blessed indeed," says the Spirit, "that they may rest from their labors, for their deeds follow them!"

493. The Lamb will conquer (Revelation 17:14)

They will make war on the Lamb, and the Lamb will conquer them, for he is Lord of lords and King of kings, and those with him are called and chosen and faithful.

494. Wedding of the Lamb (Revelation 19:7-9)

Let us rejoice and exult and give him the glory, for the marriage of the Lamb has come, and his Bride has made herself ready; it was granted her to clothe herself with fine linen, bright and pure"—for the fine linen is the righteous deeds of the saints. And the angel said to me, "Write this: Blessed are those who are invited to the marriage supper of the Lamb." And he said to me, "These are the true words of God."

495. Judgment (Revelation 20:4)

Then I saw thrones, and seated on them were those to whom the authority to judge was committed. Also I saw the souls of those who had been beheaded for the testimony of Jesus and for the word of God, and those who had not worshiped the beast or its image and had not received its mark on their foreheads or their hands. They came to life and reigned with Christ for a thousand years.

496. Holy city descending from heaven (Revelation 21:1-2)

Then I saw a new heaven and a new earth, for the first heaven and the first earth had passed away, and the sea was no more. And I saw the holy city, new Jerusalem, coming down out of heaven from God, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband.

497. Heritage (Revelation 21:7)

The one who conquers will have this heritage, and I will be his God and he will be my son.

498. Worship God (Revelation 22:3, 5)

No longer will there be anything accursed, but the throne of God and of the Lamb will be in it, and his servants will worship him. And night will be no more. They will need no light of lamp or sun, for the Lord God will be their light, and they will reign forever and ever.

499. The Lord will come soon (Revelation 22:7, 12)

And behold, I am coming soon. Blessed is the one who keeps the words of the prophecy of this book. Behold, I am coming soon, bringing my recompense with me, to repay each one for what he has done.

500. Enter the city by the gates (Revelation 22:14, 17, 20)

Blessed are those who wash their robes, so that they may have the right to the tree of life and that they may enter the city by the gates. The Spirit and the Bride say, "Come." And let the one who hears say, "Come." And let the one who is thirsty come; let the one who desires take the water of life without price. He who testifies to these things says, "Surely I am coming soon." Amen. Come, Lord Jesus!